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SCI Entertainment Group Plc

SCi Entertainment Group 1S a public limited company registered in England
{number 3121578} s ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock
Exchange (ticker SEG L) SCi Enterta:nment Group Plc 1s the parent company
of the S5Ci and Eidos group of companies Unless otherwise stated, the text in
this Annual Report dees not distinguish between the activities and operations
of the parent Company and those of s subsidiary undertakings This 1s the
Company s Annual Report for the 12 month pened ended 30 June 2007 and
has been prepared 1n accerdance with UK regulations 11 1s also avaitable an
the Company s website at www s¢i co uk SCi and Eidos and the SCi and Eidos
logos are registered trademarks of the SCi Entertainment Group of companies.
All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners All nghts
reserved
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ForwardHlooking Statemenis

This Annual Repart containg information about our past performance or
practices No such information should be used as an ndicator of future
performance or practices It may also contain forward looking slaterments that
are based on current expectauons or beliefs, as well as assumptions about
futwre events You can identify these statements by their use of words such as
will , anticipate , estimate expect prgject, intend plan  should may
assume and other stmilar wards You should not place undue reliance on our
forwardHooking statements which are not a guarantee of future performance
and are subject to faciors that ¢ould cause our actual results to differ
matenally from those expressed or impled by these statements Such factors
include general economic conditiens 1n the Group s markets partcularly levels
of consumer spending exchange rates, particularly between the pound sterling
the ewro and the US dollar 1n which the Group makes significant sales the
Groups ahility to continue to win acceptance of 1Its products which are offered
in highly competitive markets charactensed by continual new product
Introductions rapid developments in technology and subjective and changing
consumer preferences (particularly in the entertainment busingss) the Groups
ability to attract and retain qualified personnel nsks of dong business
internationally, and other risks descnbed from time to timeg in SCt
Entertainment Group Plc s penodic reports and filings We undertake no
obligation o update our forward-locking statemenis whether as a result of new
informatian future events or otherwise No information contained in this Annual
Report constitutes or shall be deemed to constitute an invitation or otherwise
to deal in ordinary shares of SCi Entertainment Group Plc The price of
secunties and inceme denved from the secunties can go down as well as up
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Background

SCi is one of the world’s leading publishers and developers of
entertainment software. We create and own content for a wide range
of digital media including PC, Sony’s PlayStation® 2, PlayStation® 3
and PSP®, Microsoft Xbox 360 and Xbox Live, Nintendo Wii and DS,
the internet, mobile phones and digital television. We own some of
the strongest brands in the games industry including Tomb Raider,
Hitman, Championship Manager, Conflict, Just Cause, Thief,
Carmageddon, Deus Ex and Kane & Lynch. We have licensed the
interactive rights to a number of film and TV properties including
Batman.,, Looney Tunes.,, Highlander, Reservoir Dogs and Who Wants
to Be a Millionaire? The Group employs over 950 people in nine
countries and our wholly-owned development studios include Crystal
Dynamics, lo Interactive and Eidos Montreal.
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Key points

Results for the year

Revenue for the year fell
principally due to the timing
of product {aunches and
weaker retail pnices on old
generation platforms Both of

Actions to build the Group
During the financial year the
Group has taken steps to
build long-term value. These
Include

> Strategic relationship with

Changes to the Board
Following the non-executive
appointments of Roger Ames
and Don Johnston during the
year, the Board has been
further strengthened by the

these factors reflect the Warner Bros
hardware transition In the > Acquisitions to strengthen
video games market An New Media Business
exceptional provision of > Significant investment in
£13 8 mitlion has been product pipeline including
established against the products for the
carrymg value of capitahised successful Nintendo Wi
development costs and DS platforms
> Establishment of new
development studio In
Montreal

appointment of Phil Rogers
as CFO Bill Ennis becomes
Managing Director —
Publishing, Rob Murphy
becomes Managing Director
- Studios

Brand highlights

> Tomb Rarder Anniversary celebrates ten years of the Tomb
Raider franchise with a number one hit and 1 million units
sold during the year.

> Two new franchises, Just Cause and Battlestations Midway,
were successfully launched and became number one hits
Over 1 mitlion units of Just Cause have now been shipped

> Success with Pony Friends on Nintendo DS illustrates the
Group’s ability to create new franchises for a younger and
broader audience in ine with the Group’s strategy

> Following the release n late May n Europe and June In
North America, Pony Friends shipped 300,000 units on
Nintendo DS by the financial year-end, ahead of original
expectations for that pertod, and 1s continuing to sell well
during the 2008 financial year

> A version of Pony Friends for the Nintendo Wn 1s planned

> Strength of Group’s IP confirmed by the release of the first
Hitman movie, and sale of film nghts for Kane & Lynch

> Much anticipated launch of new franchise Kane & Lynch
Dead Men released in November 2007 on PS3, Xbox 360
and PC
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Our strategy

Our objective 1s to deliver attractive long-term returns
for our investors through profitable growth. This 1s
achieved by implementing the following business
strategies:

Improve the customer offering: Creating, acquinng
and exploiting a strong portfclio of IP across
commercially successful platforms.

Grow the player base: Broadening our product range
and growing our player base geographically and
demographically.

Sustainable growth: Expanding the business through
sustainable organic growth and selective acquisition
of strategically important businesses.

Careful management: Detalled planning and careful
management of business and development risks.
Constant change: Embracing new opportunities
presented by the digital age.
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Features

staying ahead

The global video games generation of consoles, 2008 and beyond The Group
market 1s In transition and handheld devices and mobile has a growing stable of

1s estimated to grow from platforms Additionally, new highly recognised propnetary
$27 billien in 2005 to online markets, together and licensed IF proven

$46 billion 1in 2010 (source* with the broadening development capacity, best
PwC) We beheve SCi 15 well demographics of game of breed development

placed to capitalise upocn consumers will provide a technology and a global

this market fuelled by a new strong basis for growth in publishing infrastructure

Formats 1n 2007

lSony PlayStation® 2 |

[ Nintendo Gamecube '

L Microsoft XBox |

ISony PlayStation® 3 l

l Nintendo Wil ’

| Formats in 2000 |Mlcrosoft XBox 360 |

|
| Sony PlayStation I ( Nintendo DS |
!

| Nintendo N64 [ Sony PSP® I

( Sega Dreamcast | Fiameboy Advance SPI

l Sony PlayStation® 2 i r Gameboy Micro |

| Gameboy | ’ Mobile Phones |

e e ]
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Features continued

“Tomb Raider Anniversary 1s easlly one of the

best games released all year "

Eurogamer

%This 1S a glorious romp down a memeory
lane reimagined at the outer extremes
of the PS2's technological capabilities »

Daily Mail

é#|t’'s a Lara, Lara fun
The Sun

strong portfolio

Management of intellectual
property 1s key to the Group's
success SCi has a strong
history of franchise success,
and a pipeline of world leading
tittes The Group's ownership
of blockbuster digital content
including Tomb Raider and
Hitman 1s underpinned by

11 other franchises which
have sold more than one
million units each
Franchises such as Kane

& Lynch and Battlestations
Midway have the potential to
Join this list. We also license
in the interactive nghts to
brands that have high

éHitman Blood Money s a brilliant

slice of cerebral gaming
Games Master

&Blood Money feels fresh, focused and
utterly compelling You owe it to yourself

to play this 7
PSM2

éBlood Money 1s without question the

best Hitman yet »

Official PlayStation® 2 Magazine

élt's a bloody marvellous game .

Xbox 360 Gamer

recognition and game
potential. Our product
portfclio was further
strengthened during the year
by our strategic partnership
with Warner Bros providing
access to a number of well
Known mass market
licences
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Features continued

creating brands

During the year the Group
has made good progress In
further building 1ts
estabiished franchises,
launching new and valuable
intellectual property and
expanding its portfolio of
strong licensed products Two
new franchises, Just Cause

and Battlestations Midway,
were successfully launched
and became number one
hits during the year. Qver

1 mihon units of Just Cause
have now been shipped. The
strength of the Group’s IP
has been further confirmed
by the release of the first

Fully-owned IP to sell 1 million + units
Tomb Ralder 31m

Hitman 7m

Champlonship Manager 5m
Conflict serles 6m
Carmageddon 1 5m

Thlef 1 5m

Deus Ex 2 5m

Gangsters 1m

Legacy of Kain 3 5m

Urban Chaos Im
Shellshock 1m
Championship Rally 3m

Just Cause 1m

Hitman movie and sale of
the film rights for Kane &
Lynch to premier
tndependent producer,
Lionsgate Development of
Conflict Dented Ops* 1S on
track for multi-platform
release In the 2008 financial
year.

* Formerly known under the working
title Crossfire
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Features continued

winning partnerships

The Group has established
partnerships with some
world leading media groups —
Warner Bros , Fox and
Paramount During the year
Warner Bros subscnbed for
a 10 3% shareholding in the
Group for a cash investment
of £44 5 milion Additionally,
we entered Iinto a sernes of
licensing arrangements with

Licensed IP

Reservoir Dogs

Who Wants to be a Millionaire?
Highlander

Warner Bros property including
Hanna-Barbera characters

Looney Tunes characters

Batman

Wacky Racesy

Warner Bros Interactive
Entertainment to create and
publish games based on a
series of their properties
including Batman, Looney
Tunes and the Hanna-Barbera
catalogue

The Group also derves
licensing income and
benefits from Iincreased
brand awareness by

exploiting the non-game
rights of its intellectual
property Paramount Pictures
has already released two
highly successful films
based on the Tomb Raider
franchise and 20th Century
Fox has recently released a
film version of Hitman
starring Timothy Olyphant as
Agent 47.

| Whotly-Owned Development Studios

i Crystal Dynamics USA

l lo Interactive Denmark

r Beautiful Game Studios UK

Eides Hungary

Eldos Studios Sweden

Eidos Montreal Canada

Pivotal Games UK |

|
|
|
|
|: Rocksteady UK {25 1%)

New Media

New Media UK

’ Rockpool Games Mobile
I Morpheme Mobile

Ijlueﬂsh Media Digital dlstrtbuuod
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Features continued

broader

The market for video games IS
broadening demographically by
age and gender A generation
of gamers 1s moving through
the population According to
research published in 2007 by
the US Entertainment
Software Association, 24% of
gamers In the US were over
the age of 50 The average
age of game players 15 33,
and the gender split 1s 62%
male to 38% female Women
aged 18 or older now
represent a significantly
greater portion of the game-
playing population (31%) than
boys age 17 or younger (20%)

audience

For casual online puzzle-
style and simple mobile phone
games, the gender divide 15
more or less equal* Further
growth In the available market
1s expected to derive from
less mature markets, such as
Brazil, Russia, India and
China, which are experiencing
rapid growth in entertainment
and media spending

Success with Pony Friends
on Nintendo DS illustrates
the Group's ability to create
new franchises for a younger
and broader audience in line
with the Group's strategy
Following release In late May

* Source Nielsen Entertainment Active Gamer Study

“As pony caring sims go, Pony Friends 1s

really rather excellent ”
Pro-g co uk

“This game could be the best news for

parents this year”
The Times

“It's exactly what a horse-focused wvirtual
pet expenence should be about ”

IGN com

“Will make a little girl happy somewhere ”

NGamer

in Europe and June in North
America, Pony Friends had
shipped 300,000 units on
Nintendo DS by the financial
year-end, ahead of onginal
expectations for that period,
and 1s continuing to sell well
during the 2008 financial
year We plan to expand the
franchise by introducing
further “Frniends” games on a
variety of platforms including
Nintendo Wi

The Group will have
released a total of ten titles
for the Nintendo DS and Wi
platforms by Christmas
2007

Who Plays What?

Gender split of game

players in US %
Mate G2
Female 38

Source Entertainment Software
Association
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Features continued

I innovation H Development I r Final Stage I
r Concept H Design JLPrototype H Pre-production “ Production H Alpha I Gold Master I

cost efficient

Our studios have continued
to build high quality
technology and game
engines to maximise the
efficiency and cost
effectiveness of game
development The Group's
centralised approach and
standardisation of technology
enables asset shanng using

the same languages and
tools across multiple
locations, leveraging our size
and creating higher
production standards and
improved return on
investment We outsource
development where
approprtate to do so and are
expanding our capacity In

cost efficient locations, such
as our newly opened studio
In Montreal. We are
constantly refining our
development capabilities and
the Group 1s considerning
plans to derive additional
revenues by hicensing our
proprietary technology to
third parties in future
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Features continued

hew opportunities

The new generation of
consoles and the growth of
mobile and wireless devices
allows for more flexible digital
distribution models and
opportunities to bring our
existing IP portfolio to market
through new channels The
future 1s online and
connected, allowing for
downloadable content,
subscription based gaming,
In-game advertising and on

demand transactional and
billing capabilities More than
A40% of total entertainment
and media growth during the
next five years will be
generated through online and
wireless technologles (source
PwC) Digital distnbution of
games improves gross margin
and builds customer Intimacy
Subscription based online
communities and the
emergence of ‘massively

Enter the world of Zendoku, a martial arts-
themed, action puzzle adventure game
based on the enormousty popular logic
game, Sudoku

multi-player online’ formats
centred on existing and new
franchises will build further
predictability into the Group’s
revenue streams The Group's
expansion into the ‘New
Media" markets of online,
mobtle and multi-player
community-based gaming was
accelerated during the year by
the acquisitions of Rockpool
Games, Bluefish Media and
Morpheme

10
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Chairman’s statement

During the financial year, the Group
expenenced challenging trading cond:tions in
a market strongly affected by the transit:on
from old hardware platforms to next
generation platforms However, the Group
continued to make progress through a
number of strategic actions to ensure that
we are well positioned for the future and the
anticipated growth and pricing model on next
generation consoles

Results for the year
EBITDA for the year was £15 O million (2006
£28 8 million) This is stated before
exceptional items of £14 4 mullion (2006
£1 8 mullion), share based compensation
payment of £2 2 milliors (2006 £4 4 million)
and before the impact of exceptionally tugh
pnee protection charges of £14 5 million
{2006 £ni) Pre-tax loss was £30 0 million
(2006 profit £8 1 millign) 1n addition, as
previously indicated, we have incurred
significant charges in two important areas
both strongly related to the consequences of
the hardware transition

As previously announced, the Group
incurred exceptionally high price protection
charges of £14 5 mithion These charges,
recorded as a deduction from revenue,
arose from lower retail prices, particularly on
PlayStation® 2 products

The Group has carefully assessed its
level of capitalised development costs We
have previcusly indicated that we would
establish a provision of approximately
£4 million against our expenditure on
PlayStation® 3 products

The Board continues to believe 1n the
long-term commercial success of
PlayStation® 3 but believes this may take

mare time than originally forecast by Sony
Accordingly the Board made a prudent
provision of £13 8 million against the
carrying value of certain related capitalised

development costs This was recorded as an

exceptional charge

The Board is of the opinion that the key
driver to the acceleration of the installed
base of PlayStatwon® 3 ts the price of the
hardware The Board welcomes the recent
price cut announced by Sony in October
2007 and continues to monitor the

commercial success of the Group's products

on this piatform

Update on potential offer

0On 4 September 2007 we announced that
we had recewved an approach regarding a
possible offer for the Company Since that
time, we have recewved further approaches
and discussions are ongoing with a number
of potential acquirers At the date of this
Annual Report, this remains the case There
remains no certainty that any offer for the
Company will be made or as to the terms of
any such offer were one to be made A
further announcement will be made 1n due
course

Board changes

As the Group continues to grow we have
recognised the need 10 expand the senior
management team Accordingly | am
delighted that Phil Rogers, who joined the
Group In February 2007 as Corparate

Development Durector, has been promoted to

the Board as Chief Financial Officer
replacing Reb Murphy, who becomes
Managing Director — Studios Phif was
previously Vice-President of Corporate

Pony Friends

Take your pony out and
explore over 15 different trails
trexking through mountains,
wetlands, farmland, towns,
forests, along beaches and
more Daily play will ensure
that your pony 1s the prettiest,
healthiest, fastest, most
talented, and best pony,
scooping you first prize in the
prestigious ‘perfect pony
competition’

Developed by Tecmo’s Team Ninja, the critically acclaimed Ninja
Gaiden series has heen lauded as one of the most intense and
exclting action video games ever created Ninja Gaiden Sigma is
the frst next-generation game In the seres

élt's one of the best games of all time ”?
Official PlayStation® Magazine

&Nirya Garden 1s Just something that no self-
respecting action gamer should be without *
GamesTM

&This Is an absolutely essential purchase
Play Magazine
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Chairman’s statement continued

Development at Electronic Arts and 1S a
chartered accountant

Bill Ennis, formerly Commercial Director,
becomes Managing Director — Publishing
These changes were effective from
27 September 2007

Strateglic actlons
Despite challenging trading condiions, the
Group continued to make strong strategic
progress dunng the financial year

We completed a senes of agreements
with Warner Bros Entertainment, one of the
world's leading media companies Under
these arrangements, Warner Bros
has made a significant investment of
£44 5 mililon in the ordinary share capital of
the Company and we have entered into a
serigs of licensing arrangements with
Warner Bros to create and publish games
based on a series of thewr intelleciual
property — including Batman, Looney Tunes
and the Hanna-Barbera catalogue The first
phase of these titles 1s now in production The
first of these titles wilt be released in 2008

We have grown our New Media dwision
through the strategic acquisiions of
Rockpool Games, Bluefish Media and
Morpheme These acquisitions increase our
scale in online and mobile gaming and
distnbution

We have invested £68 5 million in new
products and technologies to increase our
product pipeline and improve the long-term
efficiency of our studios We have increased
our focus on the highly successful Nintendo
Wi and DS platforms and have a substantial
pipeline of both published and distnbution
titles planned for these platforms for the
year ahead

Games

We opened a new development studio in
Montreal, demonstrating qur commitment to
expand our development resources in cost-
effective locations Montreal 1s already
benefiting from our strategy of technology
shanng Dunng the past three months we
have also established an aperating base In
China to further our strategy of utilising cost
effective outsourcing

During the year our recently established
studio 1n Budapest enjoyed number one
chart success with its first release
Battlestations Midway

A recent report from PwC's Global
Entertainment Ouilook predicts the global
video games market to grow from $27 billion
In 2005 to $46 billkon in 2010 We believe
that through our investments and strategy
we are well positioned to take full advantage
of this growth

Tim Ryan
Chairman
7 December 2007

Ruthless real world action in
an explosive two-man first
person shooter Conflict
Denled Ops from the award-
winning daveloper, Pivotal

SCi Entertainment Group Ple Annual Report & Accounts 2007
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Chief Executive’s statement

Our results for the year reflect the trading
conditions expenenced as a result of the
transition from old platforms to next-
generation platforms Exceptionally high price
protection charges and changes to our
release schedule resulted in revenues and
EBITDA being below our onginal expectations

From an overall market perspective, the
past 12 months have confirmed the
changing ways in which people purchase and
play games, the piatforms on which they
play them and a significant expansion of the
age range and interests of game players

It was a year which confirmed that the
transition which 1s currently being
experienced by the video games industry 15
much more than simply a console upgrade,
it 1s an opportunity to introduce new games
and gaming genres, develop games for
previously untapped audhences, deliver
games 1n new and innovative ways to the
end consumer and expand the busingss with
better potential margins

To address this market backdrop over the
past 12 months the Group has made good
progress In making sure we are well
positioned to exploit the opportunities of
being a global publisher of interactive
entertainment software

We have increased our focus on Nintendo
Wi and DS platforms We recently
announced plans to release 30 new titles for
these platforms by the end of the calendar
year 2008 An example of our success on
these platforms 1s Pony Fniends, which was
launched in May and illustrates our ability to
create new franchises for Nintendo’s younger
and broader audience This product has
shipped in excess of our orginal
expectations and marks the beginning of

another new franchise for the Group

We recently reteased Kane & Lynch
Dead Men on 13 November in the US and
23 November in Europe With the movte
rights already apticned by Lionsgate Films,
this 1s a hugely anticipated utle which we
believe will prove to be a mult-million unit
franchise from our acclaimed studio lo
Interactive, creators of Hitman

We also recently released the Nintendo
Wi and Xbox 360 versions of Tomb Raider
Anniversary as a pre-Chnstmas launch

Our commitment to invest in technology,
expand our studies and New Media group
and broaden our product portfolio — through
both expanding our wholly-owned onginal
intellectual property and bullding strategic
partnerships with companies such as
Warner Bros — demonstrates our
commitment to long-terrn growth and
bullding shareholder value

Results to 30 June 2007 -~ Overview
Tota! revenues for the year were £144 0
rmullion, down 20% compared to prior year
However, these revenues are stated after
£14 5 millien of exceptionally large price
protection charges and therefore on an
adjusted basis, revenues were £158 5 mullion,
a decrease of 12% compared to 2006

Just Cause, Tomb Raider Anniversary and
Battlestations Midway were the largest
contributors to the results of our Publishing
division

Tormb Raider Anniversary celebrated ten
years of our world-leading franchise with a
number one hit and 1 millien units shipping
on launch

We successfully launched new titles, Just
Cause and Battlestations Midway, and both

Championship Manager 2008
allows you to manage your
¢lub to glory, dealing with
evarything from tactics and
training to transfers —
everything you would expect a
real-life football manager to do
without owning a sheepskin

coat

Bringing the Highlander
universe to ifa on nhext-
generation gaming consoles
Highlander is an exciting
project in the pipeline

14
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Chief Executive’s statement continued

Group revenues arose from the following sources

12 months to 12 months o
20 June 2007 30 June 2008
£m im
Published products 752 145 3
Distribution 601 286
Licensing and New Media 87 52
144 0 1791

These revenues arose from the following unit sales
12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
Units (m) Units (m}
Published products 83 94
Distnibution G4 25
14 7 119

became number one hits Over 1 mullion
units of Just Cause were shipped during the
year We launched Battlestations Midway, a
title developed by our Budapest studio, in
February Importantly, both titles are wholly-
owned intellectual property, both of which
have sequels in development and we beheve
both titles have the potential to be long-term
franchises

The largest contributor to distr:bution
revenues was continued sales of Lego Star
Wars In addition, sales of Justice League
Heroes, distnbuted by the Group on behalf
of Warner Bros , were strong

SCiI made a gross profit of £57 O million
for the financial year which was 40% of
revenue This compares 1o a gross profit of
£103 8 million or 58% of revenue, 10 the prior
year The reduction in gross profit was due to
a much higher proportion of distnbution
revenue, on which the Group earns lower
margins, plus pricing pressure reflected in an
exceptionally high charge for price pratection

Total development costs charged to the
income statement for the year were
£32 8 million {2006 £28 1 million) This
represents 44% of revenue from published
products, compared to 19% in the previous
year Total charges include an exceptional
provision of £13 8 million against capitalised
development costs This includes
provision agaimnst our investment in certain
PlayStation® 3 products and technologies

The Group spent £13 7 million (2006
£19 4 mullion) on advertising in the financial
year Advertising expenditure is broadly
proportional to planned revenue Advertising
costs Include all external costs incurred to
promote the sale of the Group's products
All such costs are expensed as incurred

The charge for other administrative
overhead costs of £41 3 million (2006
£47 8 million} includes £15 3 milhon (2006
£14 8 million) of depreciation and
amortisation charges and £2 2 million
(2006 £4 4 milhon) of share based

Command Spartan, Persian

and Egyptian armies across
27 challenging missions to
conquer the ancient worsld in
this real time strategy game
of epic proportions

Monster Lab is a role playing
game/action hybrid where
players conduct outragecus
experiments and venture out
on wild quests and challenges,
creating their very own mad
monster to battle against evil
monster minions or friends
online
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Chief Executive's statement continued

compensation Therefore the underlying level
of cash based overheads was £23 8 million
(2006 £28 6 milion) The underlying level
of overhead expenditure has remained
relatively constant However, the Group has
classified approximately £6 million of costs
including the cost of Quality Assurance as
development rather than administration

After allowing for all exceptional costs
plus non-cash amortisation charges, the
loss before tax was £30 O mullion (2006
profit before tax £8 1 million)

Our achievements
We remain focused on delivering solid, long-
term sharehoider value through growing our
player base, improving our customer
offenngs, investing in ntellectual property
and broadening our product base We
believe financial year 2007 can be
summansed as a year in which we made
good progress against these objectives and
1s a year in which we made important
strategic investments

Qur success with Pony Friends on
Nintendo's handheld DS dewvice illustrates
our ability to create new franchises for a
younger and broader audence Following the
release in May in Europe and June in North
America, Pony Friends had shipped 300,000
units by the financial yearend, ahead of
onginal expectations, and has continued to
sell extremely well post year-end
establishing another wholly-owned onginal
intellectual property

Nintendo’s Wi and DS platforms have
revolutionised gaming with their innovative and
simple approach to entertaining Designed for
a pick-up-and-play gamer, the success of these
platforms has opened up our market to new

players will control Lara like never before

Released on Nintendo's groundbreaking console comes
Lara's most innovative adventure to date — Tomb Ralder
Anniversary Fully exploiting the Wii's unique controllers,

audiences The creation in 2007 of our
dedicated Casual Games division enables us
to focus on dnving growth from this consumer
trend There are plans for a Nintendo Wu .
version of Pony Friends and the Group will
have released ten titles for the Nintendo
platforms by Christmas 2007 and currently
has over 20 products for Nintendo DS and
Wu scheduled for release in the 2008
calendar year

Our New Media group's acquisitions this
year of Rockpool Games, Bluefish Media
and Morpheme demonstrates our belief that
online connectivity and mohile games
represents a significant opportunity to grow
our revenue streams over the next cycle

We believe that the growth and success
of broadband and mobile infrastructures will
present many opportunities including
extending the Iife span of our products,
enabling us to offer new content and sell to
consumers through online micro-
transactions and extending game-play
across different dewvices

Battiestations Midway and Just Cause
utilised the online capabtlity of Microsoft's
Xbox Live Marketplace to good effect in 2007,
Battiestations Midway generated over
1 million downloads of additional online
content from the demo, wallpapers and videos
and the Just Cause single player game-demo
generated over 800,000 downloads itself

A highly original handheld
game for Nintendo DS, Prism
Light the Way was released
globally to much entical
acclaim with it's challenging
tight based puzzle gameplay

We have invested across our core business
in 2007

We have continued to expand our internal
development capabilities with the opening of
a studio in Montreal and invested further In
technology to keep us at the cutting edge of
next-generation game development Today
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Chief Executive’s statement continued

our development processes are benefiting
from a backbone of shared technologies,
engines and game assets which we will look
to further enhance over the coming year

We have over 600 employees within in-
house development and we expect to
continue to build our studios In terms of size
and skills, especially in locations that allow us
to keep development costs down

We have invested significantly in the
pipeline of products for 2008 and beyond
and we are looking farward with much
anticipation to the sequels to Just Cause
and Battlestations Midway, which are
already 1n development, and new versions of
world-leading franchises Tomb Raider and
Hitman We recently launched brand new IP
into the market in the form of Kane & Lynch
Dead Men, which generated a considerable
amount of press interest prior to the
November launch

Our distribution business prowdes a low-
risk, profitable source of revenue that makes
most effective use of our global sales and
distribution infrastructure Over the year we
secured agreements with numerous
companies to distnbute strong third-party
product tncluding Justice League Heroes from
Warner Bros , Bionicle Heroes from Travellers
Tales, NMinva Gaiden Sigma from Tecmo and
through Proein, our 100% owned Spanish
subsidiary, Final Fantasy Xif from Square Enix

We created some winning partnerships
with world leading media groups In early
2007, production began on the new Hitman
film from 20th Century Fox, starnng Timothy
QOlyphant and Dougray Scott This was shot
on location n Europe and was released
worldwide 1n November 2007

Our prioritles and outlook
The nvestment 1n our business over the
past 12 months gives us a strong product
pipeline for financial year 2008 and well into
2010 Our publishing business I1s planning
13 new releases on over 34 platform vanant
products In the next 12 months compared
to 12 new releases in FYO7 We are also
scheduled to more than double the number
of games launched by our New Media and
Casual Games divisions We are also
actively explornng online and massively mult-
player online {(*“MMO") opportunities for our
IP in China

Over the next year we believe we will see
further expansion of our target audiences
and really see the power of next-generation
platforms Therefore our future prionties are
set clearly on establishing our new games
firmly in the market place and appealing to
this expanding demographic across a
broader platform base We will also continue
to build on our existing franchises of 13
intellectual properties which have sold over
1 million units each, including the Tomb
Raider franchise which has now sold over
31 million units and whose storyline and
game innovation continues to evolve

Our staff are fundamental to the success
of the business and | would like to take this
opportunity to thank ail our employees for
their contnbution and commitment over the
past 12 months

Qau_e_ Ca\/owxc\\gk ,

Jane Cavanagh
Chief Executive
7 December 2007

Battlestations Midway
launched in February 2007 to
much cnitical acclaim as the
first game of its kind to
successfully mix ‘realtime
strategy’ and third-person
action on an epic scale
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Operating and financial review

Results from operations
The Group regards earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation
(*EBITDA"} which 1s detailled in note 9, as a
key measure of profitability EBITDA provides
a key measure of the Group's operating
performance and excludes non cash charges
such as depreciation and amortisation It s
the measure most commonly used by the
flnancial community to assess the
Company's performance

Adjusted EBITDA before exceptional items
and share based payment compensation for
the 12 months to 30 June 2007 was
£15 0 million (2006 £28 8 million} Loss
hefore tax was £30 0 million (2006 profit
£8 1 mithon) In armving at the loss before
tax the Group incurred certam significant
excepticnal items which anse principally
from the transition to new hardware formats
in the video game industry

Revenue
Total revenues were £144 0 million Group
revenues arose from the sources indicated
in Table 1 opposite

Total revenues includes sales of games
to retallers and distributors at invoiced
amounts Provisions for future returns or
price protection are deducted from total
revenues

Revenue from published products

The Group launched 12 new titles in the
financial year (see Table 2 opposite} which,
together with back catalogue sales,
generated £75 2 mithon of revenues on
sales of 8 3 million units This compared to
revenue of £145 3 milllon across ntne titles
selling @ 4 milhon units 1n 2006 Compared

to 2006, unit sales fell, reflecting the lack of
a major multe-platform release The largest
unit selling titles in 2007 were Tomb Raider
Anniversary on PS2 and PC (1 nmullion umits)
and Just Cause on PS2, PC and Xbox 360
(1 million units) This compares to Tomb
Rader Legend on PS2, PC, Xbox, DS and
Gameboy Advance (2 9 milhon units) and
Hitman Blood Money on PS2, PC and Xbox
360 (1 4 milhon units) in 2006 Further
platforms of Tomb Raider Anniversary have
been reteased in the 2008 financial year

Average revenue per unit fell o £8 89
per unit in 2007 from £15 46 per unitn
2006 The significant fall reflects a dechne
in retail prices on hardware platforms,
particularly the P52, which are declining in
advance of the launch of a new generation
of hardware

Revenue from distribution products
The Group acted as global distnbutor for
four new products In the financial year which
can be seen In Table 3 opposite

In addition we continued to earn
significant revenue from the distributton of
Lego Star Wars

Distribution revenues represent amounts
invoiced to retaillers or other distributors for
products distnbuted under contract for third
parties

Distribution revenues Increased to
£60 1 mulion from £28 6 miilion 1n 2008,
reflecting a significant growth 1n the volume
of distribution products Unit sales of
distribution products grew to 6 4 million
units from 2 5 milien units in 2006 The
largest selling products were Legdo Star Wars
(1 9 milhon units) and Justice League Heroes
(1 million urits) Average revenue per

One of the most eagerly
anticipated massively multi-
player online {*“MMO”) titles
since World of Warcraft, Age of
Conan offers a unique mature
take on the traditional MMO

games and boasts

unsurpassable visual quality In

its execution
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Operating and financial review continued

Table 1

Group revenues arose from the following sources
12 months to 3¢ June 2007

12 months to 30 June 2006

£m % £m %

Published products 752 52 1453 81
Distnbution 601 42 286 16
Licensing and New Media 87 6 52 3

144 0 100 1791 100
Table 2

Xhox
New product releases PSPe P32 Xbox 360 pC Wu fs1:3 GC  GBA
Reservoir Dogs > > >
Just Cause > > > >
Bionicle Heroes > > > > >
Tomb Raider Legend ] > >
Champronship Manager 2006/7 > > > >
Who Wants to be a Milionare? > > >
Battlestatrons Midway > >
Zendoku > >
Chilt Con Carnage >
Tomb Raider Anniversary > >
Diner Dash > >
Pony Friends >
Table 3
Xbox

Distribution products PSP PS2  Xpox 360 PC Wi DS GC  GBA
Bionicle Heroes > >
Justice League Heroes > > > >
Tom and Jerry >
300 March to Glory >

Top Trumps Doctor Who brings
one of the most successful
science fiction characters into
the digital arena, structured
and complimented by the
ctassic card game, Top Trumps
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Operating and financial review continued

distribution unit fell to £9 39 per unit from
£11 44 per unit In 2006, reflecting a dechine
in retail prices

Revenues from Licensing and New Media
Licensing revenue derives from the
explottation of the Group's intellectual
property in areas other than the direct sale
of games This includes revenue from film
nights, merchandising and the sale of
advertising rights in games New Media
revenue anses from the sale of products
developed for mobile phones and other on-
line platforms including digital TV

Revenue from Licensing and New Media
grew to £8 7 million 1n 2007 from £5 2
million in 2006 This primarnly reftects
growth In New Media revenue as the Group
seeks to expand this area

Gross profit
The Group made a gross profit of £57 O
million, 40% of revenue, (2006 £103 8
milhon, 58% of revenue) The decrease in
profitabiliy reflects the performance of the
Group's published products versus the
increased impoertance of distnbution
products

Gross profit represents turnover less the
direct costs of selling a game Direct selling
costs principally comprise the cost of
manufactuning and delivering physical copies
of the fimished product including the disc,
box and packaging They also include
royalties to third parties in respect of
products distrnibuted by the Group

The gross profit on new published
products was approximately 58% of revenue
falling from 66% in 2006 This reflects the
price decline in the retail prices of products

sold on the Playstation® 2 and Xbox platforms

The gross profit in distnbution of third
party products was approximately 14% of
revenue (23% in 2008) The gross profit on
Licence and New Media income was 98%
(2006 94%) of revenues

Development costs
Development costs before exceptional items
charged to the income statement for the
year were £19 0 million (2006 £27 0
milion) In common with the majonty of
global video game publishers, and
consistent with the requirements of IFRS,
development costs are capitalised during
the course of production from the point at
which a product 1s considered to be
technically and commercially feasible (see
note 1, page 45) The capitalised amounts
are shown as capitalised development costs
{non current, intangible assets) in the
balance sheet Capitalised development
costs are charged o the income statement
from the games release over the perod in
which the Group reasonably expects to earn
revenues from the product

The amortisation of devetopment costs
represented 25% of revenue from published
products compared to 19% in 2006

In addition the Group incurred exceptional
development charges of £13 8 million
(2006 £1 1 mulhon} The Group has
carefully assessed its level of development
expenditure, having invested heavily in new
products and technology for next generation
products, with a particular emphasis on
Playstation® 3 We are also tnvesting in a
development infrastructure that will enable
this investment to be leveraged across
multiple products and studios All of these

Kane & Lynch is a cinematic erime drama that tells a raw

and gritty tale of a flawed mercenary and a medicated
psychopath working together but hating each other every

step of the way

[11

Join Dick Dastardly and the
gang in all the racing fun and
madness, Wacky Races style —
coming in 2008

treacherous, double-crossing brilliance ”

Kane & Lynch — 5 out of 5 -

Game of the Week
Nuts Magazine

“Some of the most intense and dramatic
action we've seen n a video game ”’

Play Magazine

[11

grabs you by the eyeballs and drags

you Into the criminal underworld n all

it's gnitty glory
T3 Magazine
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Operating and financial review continued

actions will be of longterm value to the
Group However, given the early stage of the
next-generation hardware cycle, the Board
has determined that it 15 prudent to make a
provision of £13 8 million (2006 £1 1 mithon)
agamnst the carrying value of capitalised
development costs This Is recorded as an
exceptional charge In 2006 these costs
compnised further costs incurred on a loss-
making development contract entered into
by Eidos prior to acquisition

During the 2007 financial year the Group
spent £68 5 million (2006 £57 4 milbon)
on product development, building the
investrnent in products and technology that
will benefit future financial years This level
of investment has enabled the Group to
significantly expand s future pipeline

At 30 June 2007 the Group had
capitalised development costs of £81 8
milion {2006 £46 1 millon} The major
titles In development at 30 June 2007
include Kane & Lynch, Conflict Dented Ops,
Highlander, Shelishock 2, Just Cause 2 and
Tomb Raider 8

Approximately 31% of capitalised
development costs reflect either engine
technelogy that will benefit studios over the
Iife of a hardware cycle or re-usable assets
spectfic 10 a franchise that reduce future
development costs

Advertising costs

The Group spent £13 7 million (2006

£19 4 mulhon) on advertising 1n the financial

year Advertising expenditure 1s proportionat

to planned revenue Our overall spend in

2006 was planned to re-establish key

franchises such as Tomb Raider and Hitman
Advertising costs include all external costs

incurred to promote the sale of the Group's
products The largest proportion of
advertising costs 1s TV, radio, outdoor, print
and internet advertising Adveruising costs
also include promotional and PR campaigns
All advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Administrative costs
Administrative costs comprise all the costs
of running the Group's corporate, publishing
and distnibution functions These include
staff and associated costs employed in
sates, distnbution, marketing, PR, 1T,
customer service, new media, finance, HR,
legal and licensing

Excluding exceptional charges, total
admunistrative costs were £41 3 million (2006
£47 8 million) The charge for administrative
expenses of £41 3 million includes £15 3
mithgn of amertisation and depreciation
charges and £2 2 million of share based
payment compensation Therefore the
underiying level of cash based overheads
was £23 8 mithon (2006 £28 6 million)

The Group incurred a £2 2 million (2006
£4 4 milhon) accounting charge to expense
the Group's share option plans

At 30 June 2007 the Group had 228
staff in sales, marketing and administration,
compared to 240 at 30 June 2006

The Group incurred exceptional charges
of £0 6 milhon relating to the settlement of
trade disputes In 2006 the Group incurred
a charge of £0 7 million relating to
restructuring costs

Zendoku blends excrting
puzzle battle action with
addictlve and immersive
Sudoku gameplay [with a light-
hearted martial arts theme})
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Operating and financial review continued

Depreciation

The charge for depreciation of plant,
property and equipment and intangible
software amortisation was £1 6 million In
the financial year (2006 £1 8 million} This
1s stated after the deduction of £0 8 million
(2006 £0 8 milhon) relating to depreciation
incurred by internal development studios,
and treated as capitalised development
cost

Acquired intangible assets and
amortlsation
Under IFRS the Group 1s required to value
intangible assets purchased through an
acquisition

The charge for amortisation of acquired
brands and technology intangible assets
increased to £1.1 O miullion from £10 6
muillion n 2006

After accumulated amortisation of £24 1
million, we show the net value of £102 7
million as an intangible asset in the Group’s
balance sheet

The brands valued in the balance sheet
include seven titles with ifetime sales of
1 mullion units or more These are Tomb
Raider, Hitman, Championship Manager,
Thief, Deus Ex, Legacy of Kamn and
Shelishock In additton the Confiict senes
and Carmageddon have also each sold over
1 million units However thewr values are
excluded from intangible assets as they
have been internally developed

The value of the intangible assets is
amortised over 15 years for brands and
eight years for technology, representing the
estimated useful economic life of the
intangible assets

Loss before tax

Loss before tax was £30 O million {2006
profit £8 1 mullion) This s stated after
depreciation and amortisation charges of
£15 3 milion These charges principally
anse because of the amortisation of
intangible assets desenbed above

Taxation
There 1s a net tax credit of £1 9 millron for
the year (2006 credit £5 4 million) The net
tax credit comprises an overseas tax credit
of £2 1 million and a deferred tax change of
£0 2 milhon

At 30 June 2007 the Group had
substantial tax losses avaitable to carry
forward and set off against future taxable
profits, subject to agreement with the
relevant tax authonties

Loss/earnings per share
Basic loss per share was 35 3p (2006
earnings 18 5p)

Goodwill

Goodwill relates mainly to the acquisitions
of Eidos and the Group’s acquisition of the
remaiming 25% of Proein The net book value
of geodwill at 30 June 2007 was £2 7
milhion (2006 £4 7 milion) Dunng the year
the Group fully wrote off all remaining
goodwill relating to the acquisition of Pivotal
as detalled in note 11 to the accounts
There 15 no contingent consideration relating
to any of these acquisstions (2006 £nil)

Hitman Blood Money is the
most recent instalment of
Agent 47's explolts as a
professional assassin
Released to c¢ntical acclaim
the game topped the UK
charts
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Operating and financial review continued

Working capital
At 30 June 2007 the Group had £31 4
milhon of cash and no borrowings

The Group started the year with £37 2
million of cash and generated £25 8 million
(pre-tax} from operations The closing cash
figure of £31 4 million reflects substantal
investment in future products

Durning the year the Company raised
£44 1 million (net of costs) from the 1ssue
of new ordinary shares to Warner Bros The
Group plans to invest this cash Into new
growth areas and, at 30 June 2007, had
invested £3 9 million in New Media
acquisitions

The Group has new banking facilities of
up to £20 million with Lioyds TSB This
provides flexibility 10 the Group, including the
opportunity to respond quickly to product
and licence acquisition opportunities, and to
cover short-term working capital
requirements

Penslons

The Group offers all employees the
opportunity to participate 1n an appropriate
Company pension scheme As these are
defined contribution schemes there are no
circumstances in which the Group will face a
future pension hability

Financlial instruments

During the year, the Group's financal
instruments, other than denvatives,
comprised cash, overdrafts and various
items such as trade debtors and creditors
that arnise directly from operations The main
purpose of these financial instruments 1S to
finance the Group's operations The Group
also enters Into dervative transactions in

the form of foreign currency contracts in
order to manage the currency risk ansing
from the Group's operations The Group's
policy 1s, and was throughout the period
under review, not to trade in financial
instruments The main nsks arsing from the
Group's financial instruments are hquidity
risk, credit nsk and foreign currency risk
The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these nsks on a regular
basis

Liquldity risk

The Group has in place bank facilitves of up
to £20 milhen with Lloyds TSB which will
cover short-term working capital needs n
penods where there are a number of product
launches

Credit risk

The Group's revenues are principally denved
from sales to retailers and distributors The
amounts due from any particular retailer or
distributor may be maternal, partcularly
fotlowing major product releases The
Group's policy I1s to only extend credit to
companies with a strong credit rating and to
obtain credit iInsurance to protect against

the risk of default Breaking new ground in mobile
phone gaming, Eidos has
adapted the Il version of

the original PlayStation®
Pandemonium game for next
generation mobile phone

handsets

vast and colourful environments
allow players to experience the
struggle between cat and
mouse that fans have enjoyed
for decades References from
the classic Tom and Jerry

episodes are Incorporated along
with an original art style in the
game
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Operating and financial review continued

Foreign currency risk

The Group receves significant revenues in
either euros or US dollars The Group also
has significant costs in each of these
currencies relating to overseas offices, the
manufacture of finished products and the
development of new games The Group
seeks 1o balance the flows of currency
across countries to mimmise any imbalance
of foreign currency receipts and payments

Key performance Indicators

The directors monitor a number of financial
metrics and key performance indicators
{KPIs) for the Group, including

> Sales units and gross profit of each
product

Average selling prices

Use of price protection provision

Chart positions

Review scores

Development costs and pipeline
Contnbution by title

In addition, the directors receive information
on non financial metrics such as reports
from the Group's quality assurance function
and the results of focus groups

VvV V VYV V VY V¥

Pony Friends has been a hugely successful title
for the Group and continues to sell strongly as
we approach Christmas 2007 A sequel Is
already in the making

Risks and uncertainties
Risks to the business include the risk of
development delays and cost overruns,
competitve products, our own product
performance, the need to maintain sufficlent
working capital, the loss of key personnel,
deiays in the introduction of new hardware
platforms, associated lead times to develop
games for new hardware and increased
regulation of products

The directors regularly monitor all these
risks and uncertainties and appropnate
actions are taken to mitigate the nsks or
their potential outcomes

Employee and environmental matters
The Group's employment policies and
environmental policies are set out In the
corporate responsibility statement on
page 32

i

Phil Rogers
Chief Financial Officer
7 December 2007

The very first bat-and-ball
game designed especilally for
the Nintendo DS, Nervous
Brickdown features eye-
catching graphics and takes
tull advantage of the DS’ dual
screens, stylus, microphone
and Wi-Fi capability
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Directors, officers and advisers

Tim Ryan

Non-executive Chairman

Tim Ryan jomned the Board as a non-
executive director on 19 October 2001
and was appointed as Chairman on
30 June 2006 Tim has considerable
expenence of corporate communications
His former posttions include head of
corporate and investor relations at
SkyePharma PLC, one of the world's
leading drug delivery companies, and
director of corporate communications
at NTL He i1s currently chairman of
Bell Pottinger International

Jane Cavanagh

Chief Executive

Jane Cavanagh founded SCi
Entertainment in 1988 In May 2005
SCi Entertainment became the largest
publisher of entertainment software In
the UK following the successful
acquisition of Eidos plc Jane was
awarded an OBE n the 2007 New
Year's honours list for services to the
computer games ndustry

Bill Ennis

Managing Director - Pubhshing
(formerly Commercial Director unti!

27 September 2007)

Bil! Ennis was appointed to the Board
on 3 May 1996 having previously
spent ten years in investment banking
and two years In sales and marketing
with DEC He has considerable
expenence in the industry and 1s a
former director of the Entertainment
Leisure Software Publishers
Association (ELSPA)

Rob Murphy

Managing Director - Studios

{formerly Chief Financial Officer untif
27 September 2007)

Rob Murphy was apponted to the
Board on 21 April 1997 Before Jjoining
the Company he was a partner in the
audit and business advisory division of
Arthur Andersen in London He is a
chartered accountant

Phil Rogers

Chief Financial Officer

(appointed 27 September 2007}

Phil Rogers joined the Group in
February 2007 as Corporate
Development Director, and was
appointed to the Board as Chief
Financial Officer replacing Rob Murphy
on 27 September 2007 Phil was
previously Vice-President Corporate
Development at Electronic Arts and 1S
a chartered accountant

Roger Ames

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board on

25 September 2006, Roger Ames has
extensive experience of the
entertainment industry having
previously held positions as executive
vice-president of Polygram and
president of Polygram Music Group in
1996 Subsequently he was chairman
and CEQ of Warner Music Group from
1999 to 2004 Roger 1s currently
CEO of EMI Music North America

Nigel Wayne

Non-executive Director

Nigel Wayne joined the Board on

20 July 2001 and was appointed
senmor independent director in 2004
He 1s a chartered accountant with
constderable experience of advising
and funding growing companies n the
technology and medta sectors A
former finance director of SCI Games
Limited until 1994, he has significant
expenence of the games industry

Don Johnston

Non-executive Director

Don Johnston Joined the Board on

26 March 2007 and 1s Managing
Director and Chairman of Deutsche
Bank’'s European Mergers &
Acquisitions business He has over 28
years' experience in M&A advisory
work and general corporate finance
services Previously he was a board
director of Bankers Trust International
where he ran BT Wolfensohn, the
Bank's European M&A practice and
acted as co-head of Investment
Banking in Europe

Company Secretary
Anthony Price
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the
Group, together with the accounts and independent auditors’
report, for the 12 months ended 30 June 2007

Princlpal activities and business review

The pnincipal activities of the Group and the Company are the
development, publishing, icensing and distribution of
entertainment software A review of the Group’s performance
during the 12 months to 30 June 2007, including financial
performance, likely future developments, discussion of key
performance indicators, key risks and uncertainties facing
the Company, the prospects and position of the Company at
the year end and information that fulfils the requirements of
the Business Review, 1s set out in the Chawrman's statement,
the Chief Executive's report, and the operating and financial
review on pages 12 to 24 Prnincipal subsidianies and jont
ventures are hsted in note 14 to the accounts on page 60

Results and dividend

The results for the 12 months to 30 June 2007 are shown In
the consolidated income statement on page 40 No dvidend
has been paid or declared for the year {2006 £nil)

Financial instruments
The Group's policy on the use of financial Instruments 1s set
out it note 28

Informatlon required by Section 922 of the Companies Act
20086
Details of the Company's issued share capital are set out in
note 23 All of the Company's 1ssued ordinary shares are
fully paid up and rank equally in all respects The nghts
attached to them, in addition to those conferred on therr
holders by law, are set out in the Company’s Articles of
Association (“the Articles™) There are no restnictions on the
transfer of ordinary shares or on the exercise of voting nghts
attached to them, except (1) where the Company has
exercised its right to suspend their voting nghts or to prohibit
therr transfer following the omission of their holder or any
person tnterested in them to provide the Company with
information requested by it In accordance with Part 22 of the
Companies Act 2006 or (1) where thesr hoider 1s precluded
from exercising voting rights by the FSA's listing rules or the
City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Rules about the appointment and replacement of directors
are set out in the Articles Changes to the Articles must be
approved by shareholders passing a special resolution The
directors’ powers are conferred on them by UK legislation and
by the Articles The directors currently have shareholder
authonty to huy back up to 3,808,119 ordinary shares of the
Company during the perniod up to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”"} There are no agreements between
any Group company and any of its employees or any director
of the Company which provide for compensation to be paid to
the employee or director for termination of employment or for
loss of office as a consequence of a takeover of the
Company Details of significant agreements to which Group
companies are a party containing provisions which would be
tnggered as a consequence of & takeover of the Company,
and details of the effect of such provisions, are set out below

Significant agreements — change of control
The following significant agreements centain certain
termination and other rnghts for our counterparties upon a
change of control of the Company

The Group 1s party to a senies of licensing agreements
with Warner Bros Interactive Entertainment (*“Warner Bros ")
providing the right to develop, pubhish and distribute
worldwide up to twenty games based on certain licensed
intellectual properties over vanous hardware platforms The
agreements provide Warner Bros with a nght of termination
upon a change of control In the event that a controtiing
interest in the Company passes 10 a party that competes
with Warner Bros , provided that the games have not reached
a specified development stage

Publisher license agreements with Microsoft Corporation
and Nintendo Co Ltd provide that consent 1s required from
the licensor to assign the agreements to a third party upon a
change of control A publisher licence agreement with Sony
Corporation (“Sony") provides the licensor with a nght of
termination upon a change of control under certain specific
hmited circumstances including in the event that a controlling
interest 1n the Company passes to one of a specified list of
parties that 1s in dispute with, or competes with, Sony s
PlayStation® business

The SCi 1996 Share Option Plan and the SCi Employee
Equity Incentive Plan (a cash settled equity incentive plan)
contain provisians relating to a change of control under
which outstanding options and awards would normally vest
and become exercisable on a change of control, subject to
the detaited rules of the plans and the satisfaction of any
performance conditions at that time

Directors
The names and brief biographical details of the current
directors are set out on page 25 All the directors served
throughout the period under review other than Roger Ames,
Don Johnston and Phil Rogers who were appointed to the
Board on 25 September 2006, 26 March 2007 and
27 September 2007 respectively

Nigel Wayne and Jane Cavanagh retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election Don Johnston and Phil Rogers will retire at this
year's AGM having been appainted since the last AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselives for election Details of
directors’ holdings of options over ordinary shares are set
out In the directors’ remuneration report on page 37

:
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Directors’ report continued

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company, for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities and
for the preparation of a directors’ report and directors’
remuneration report which comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 1985 The directors are responsible for
prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 The directors are
also required to prepare financial statemenis for the Group
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation The directors have
chosen 1o prepare financial statements for the Company in
accordance with UK GAAP

Group financlal statements

International Accounung Standard 1 requires that financial

statements present fairly for each financial year the Group’s

financial position, financial performance and cash flows This

requires the fathful representation of the effects of

transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with

the definitions and recogmtion critena for assets, habilities,

income and expenses set out 1n the International Accounting

Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and

presentation of financial statements’ In virtually all

circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by

compliance with all applicable IFRS A fair presentation also

requires the directors to

> consistently select and apply appropriate accounting
policies,

> present information, including accounung policies, N a
manner that provides relevant, rehiable, comparable an
understandable information, and

> provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS 15 insufficient to enable
users to understand the \mpact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financial performance

Parent Company financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial

statements for each financial year which give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the year

end In prepanng these financial statements, the directors

are required to

> setect suitable accounung policies and then apply them
consistently,

> prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless 1t I1s inappropriate to presume that the
Company will centinue in business,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and

> state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements
Financial statements are published on the Group's

website tn accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom

governing the preparation and dissemination of financial

statements, which may vary from legistation in other

junsdictions The maintenance and integnty of the Group's

website 1s the responsibility of the directors The directors’

responsibility also extends to the ongoing integnty of the

financial statements contained therein

Directors’ and officers’ indemnity insurance
The Group has taken out an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidianes 1n respect of certain habilities which may attach
to them In their capacity as directors or officers of the
Group, so far as permitted by law This indemnity policy
subsisted throughout the year and remains in place at the
date of this report

During the 2007 financtal year the Company eniered into
separate indemnity deeds containing ‘ qualifying third party
indemnity provisions” (as defined at section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006) with each person who 1S now a
director, other than Phil Rogers, in respect of certain
liabihties which may attach to him or her as a director or
former director of the Company or of any of its subsidianes
The Campany will be entering into a similar indemnity deed
containing quabfying third party indemnity provisions with Phil
Rogers All of these provisions remain in force

Employees

The Group's employment pohicies and those regarding
disabled persons are set out in the corporate responsibility
statement on page 32

Charitable and political donations

Dunng the 12 months to 30 June 2007 SCi1 made chartable
donations of £16,000 (2006 £10,400) No political
donations were made n the year (2006 £nil)
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Directors’ report continued

Supplier payment policy

The Group’s policy 1s to settle terms of payment with suppliers
when agreeing the terms of each transaction, ensure that
suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and abide
by the terms of payment Trade creditors of the Group at the
year-end represented 20 days purchases (2006 41 days)
The Company had trade creditors of £0 6 million at the
year-end (2006 £0 2 milhon) which represented 28 days
purchases {2006 15 days)

Substantial shareholdings

On 22 November 2007 the Company had been notified of
the following interests in the ordinary share capital of the
Company

Number %
Thorson Investments Ltd 13,413,073 1544
Time Warner Entertainment Ltd 8,860,897 1020
Blackrock Investment
Management (UK) Ltd 6,603,669 7 60
Credit Agricole Cheuvreux
International Ltd 4,846,436 558
Pictet Asset Management 4,552,553 524
Legal & General Investment
Management 3,949,896 4 55
ING Bank NV London 2,870,000 330

Directors’ shareholdings
The directors who held office at 30 June 2007 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company

30 June 2007 30 June 2006

Number Number
Executive
Jane Cavanagh 4,819,630 4,819,630
Bill Enmis 259,449 259,449
Rob Murphy 83,772 83,772
Non-executive
Tim Ryan 43,141 43,141
Nigel Wayne 11,176 11,176
Don Johnston 22,000 -
Roger Ames - -

There have been no changes In the above shareholdings
between 30 June 2007 and the date of these financial
statements The interests of the directors under the SCi
1996 Share Option Plan are shown in the directors’
remuneration report

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of Informatlon to
auditors

Each director in office at the date of this report confirms that

{a) so far as he 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware,
and (b} he has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to estabiish that the Company’s
auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP have expressed thewrr willingness to
continue In office and a resolution to re appoint them will be
proposed at the AGM

order of the Board,
Anthony Price

Company Secretary
7 December 2007
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Corporate governance

The Board 1s committed to establishing and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the process by which the
Group 1s directed and managed, nsks are identiiied and
controlled and effective accountability assured

The following statement 1s intended to describe how the
Group has applied the principles of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance published in July 2003 (the “Code”},
which applied to the Group for the period under review

Composition and operation of the Board
The Board currently comprnses a non-executive chairman,
three further non-executive directors and four executive
directors Bnef biographical details of all the directors are
set out on page 25

During the year Roger Ames and Don Johnston were
appointed as non-executive directors on 25 September 2006
and 26 March 2007 respectively Phil Rogers was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer on 27 September 2007 The Board
intends to appoint a further non-executive director Iin due
course Nigel Wayne and Jane Cavanagh retire by rotation at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”}) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Association Don Johnston and Phil Rogers
will retire at this year's AGM having been appotnted since the
last AGM and, being eligikle, offer themselves for election

The roles of Chaiurman and Chief Executive are held
separately with a clear division of responsibility between them
Nigel Wayne 1s the semior independent non-executive director

All the members of the Board are equally responsible for
the management and proper stewardship of the Group and
together brng a wide range of skills and international
experience to bear on 1ssues under consideration

The Board has considered the independence of the non-
executive directors and believes that they are currently
independent of managemeni and free from any matenal
business or other relationship with the Company or the
Group that could interfere with the exercise of ther
independent judgment In this context the Board has
considered the 20,000 share options awarded to Nigel
Wayne and Tim Ryan in 2001 and has congcluded that the
awards have not adversely impacted their independent
Judgement after giving due consideration to the integrity,
contribution and conduct of each of these directors

All directors are required to stand for re-election at least
every three years

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and more
frequently where business needs require The Board has a
schedule of matters reserved to it for decision and the
regquirermnent for Board approva! on these matters 1s
communicated throughout the senior management of the
Group The schedule of matiers reserved to the Board was
reviewed and updated during the year and 1s available on the
Company's website together with the terms of reference for
each Board committee

Matters reserved for the Board include approval of the
Group's strategy, setting and menitoring performance aganst
the annual budget, business acquisitions and disposals,
matenal capital commitments, appeintments to subsidiary
company boards and commencing or settling matenal
Itigation Pnor to each meeting directors are sent an agenda

together with additional information, including financial
reports, as appropriate for the meeting

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and may take, at the Company’s
expense, independent professional advice The Board has
adopted a training and induction pohcy which includes annual
updates from the Group's corporate advisors and an
induction process for new directors

Performance evaluation
The Beard 1s in the process of establishing a formal
procedure, led by the Chairman, for the evaluation of the
performance of the Board, its committees and individual
directors

Corporate Partners Ltd were engaged during the year to
assist with this process, which initially focuses on the Board
and committee structure and workings This 1s facilitated by
means of a detalled questionnaire distributed to all Board
members, covering a wide range of matters including Board
structure, composition and processes, communications with
shareholders and corporate governance matters The
responses are then summarised for discussion amongst the
Board, led by the Chairman, Tim Ryan This process IS
ongoing and will be followed by performance evaluations of
individual directors, once the current Board, inctuding the
three recently appominted directors, have had further
opportunity to work together

The performance of the executive directors 1s reviewed
annually by the remuneration committee as part of the
annual pay review process and determination of bonuses

Board committees

The Board has delegated responsibility In @ number of areas
to three sub-committees with clearly defined terms of
reference

The audit committee
The audit committee meets at least twice a year to review
the financial results, the Group's internal control systems
and the findings of the external independent auditors It also
considers the Group's financial accounting procedures and
policies as well as the cost-effectiveness, independence and
objectivity of the external auditors by monttoring the level
and appropnateness of any non-audit work provided by them
The current members of the audit committee are Nigel
Wayne (Committee Chairman), Don Johnsten and Roger
Ames Nigel Wayne I1s a chartered accountant and has recent
and relevant financial expernence

The remuneration committee

A descrniption of the composition, responsibility and operation
of the remuneration committee 15 set out In the directors
remuneration report on page 33

The nomination committee

The nomination committee 1s responsible for reviewing the
composition and structure of the Board and for
recommending Board appointments and interviewing
potential candidates The committee meets on an ad hoc
basis as required The current members of the nomination
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Corporate governance continued

commitiee are Tim Ryan {Committee Chairman), Roger Ames,
Nigel Wayne, Don Johnston and Jane Cavanagh The
committee consults with the executive directors when
considenng appointments and external search agencies are
consuited to ensure that a wrde range of candidates can be
considered

Board and committee meetings

During the 12 months to 30 June 2007 there were six
scheduled Board meetings, three audit committee meetings,
five remuneration commitiee meetings and three meetings of
the nomination committee Directors’ attendances at the
meetings are set out In the table below

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

(6 meeungs) (3 meeungs) (5 meetings) (3 meetings)

Tim Ryan 5 (6) 2 {1)* 5(5) 3 (3}
Jane Cavanagh 5 (6) - — 3(3)
Rob Murphy 6 (6) - - -
Bill Ennis 5 (6) - - -
Nigel Wayne 6 (B) 3(3) 5 (5) 3(3)
Roger Ames 5 (6) 1(2) 4(4) 21{2)
Don Johnston 21(2) 2(2) - -

* Tim Ryan stepped down from the audit committee upon the appointment of
Roger Ames He attended one further meeling of the committee as an
Invited guest
Roger Ames was appointed to the Board on 25 September 2006 Don
Johnston was appointed to the Board on 26 March 2007
Figures In brackets indicate the number of meeungs held in the penad in
which the director was a member of the Board or Committee

Operational management

The executive directors are supported by a team of senior
managers who are responsible for assisting in the
development and achievement of the Group's corporate
strategy, business plans and budgets and for reviewing
operational and financial performance The management
team, together with the executive directors, are responsible
for agreeing and monitoring policies and other matters not
reserved for the Board

Relations with shareholders

The directors meet regularly with institutional shareholders,
fund managers and analysts and are available to answer
questions from pnivate shareholders Communication with all
shareholders 1s facilitated by the 1ssue of full year and
intenim reports which, together with other corporate
information, intenm management statements and press
releases, are available on the Company’'s website

www scl co uk The AGM provides a forum for all
shareholders 1o raise 1ssues with the directors The notice
convening the meeting 1s normally 1ssued at least 20 working
days In advance and separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantially separate 1ssue

Risk management and internal controls

The directors are responsible for the Group's system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness However,
such a system can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against matertal misstatement or loss
There 18 an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant nsks faced by the Group, in
comphiance with the guidance on Internal Control Guidance
for Directors on the Combined Code (the Turnbull Report}
published In September 1999 This process, which 15 tied
closely to operations, 1s regularly reviewed by the Board The
key procedures that the directors have estabhshed to ensure
risk management and internal controls are effective are as
follows

Risk identification

The Group has dentified 1ts major risks and has policies in
place to avoid and/or mitigate those nsks All senior
members of staff participate n this process and the results
are reported to the Board

Operational risks

Operational management are responsible for the

identification and evaluation of significant nsks applicable to

their area of business and, 1n conjunction with the Board, for

designing and operating suitable internal controls The senior

management team, which includes the executive directors

who report directly to the Board, are responstble for

monitoring and controlling all operational risks The Board

regularly rewews nsk summarnes s¢ that prompt action can

be taken \n an appropnate manner In addition, the internal

control process IS supported by

(a) a comprehensive financial controt and rolling forecast
system,

(b) a flat management structure which facilitates open and
timely communication,

(c) sophisticated project management systems to coordinate
and control key development and publishing activities,

(d) an experienced legal function that supports the Group's
business needs, and

(e)a programme of commercial insurance covenng key nsks
including intellectual property matters, product hability and
business interruption
The Board has considered the need for an internal audit

function and, given the scale and nature of the Group’s

operations, has concluded that one 1s not required at the

present ume
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Corporate governance continued

Compliance status
The Company is committed, where possible, to comply with
the recommendations of the Code
The provisions in the Code with which the Company did
not comply throughout the penod ending 30 June 2007 were
as follows
(A 3 1) Tim Ryan and Migel Wayne were previously awarded a
small number of legacy share options in 2001 The
Board has determined that no further share options
will be granted to any non-executive directors Existing
aptions held by Tim Ryan and Nigel Wayne will be
exercised or will lapse no later than 2008
(A 8) as referred to above, the Board 1s in the process of
implementing a self-evaluation process
Details of directors’ remuneration and related matters are
set out In the directors’ remuneration report on page 33

External audit matters

Independence

The audit commuttee has sole responsibiiity for assessing

the independence of the external auditors, BDO Stoy

Hayward LLP Each year the committee undertakes to

> Seek reassurance that the external auditers and their
staff have no family, financial, employment, investment or
business relationship with the Company To this end the
committee requires the external auditor and therr
assoctates to confirm this in writing, and detail the
procedures which the auditor has carried out In order to
make this confirmation

> Check that all partners engaged in the audit process are
rotated at least every five years

> Assess the likely impact on the auditors’ independence
and objectivity before awarding them any contract for
additional services

> Have as a standing agenda item auditor independence
1ssues at each audd committee meeting

Going concern

The directors confirm that, after making enqguines, they have
a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reasen, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng the accounts
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Corporate responsibility statement

SCi has a strong commitment to its customers,
shareholders, employees and, in a wider context, society at
large The Group seeks to enhance its relationships with
stakeholders and manage nsks in key areas such as health
and safety SCiis included 1n the FTSE4Goaod, an index of
companies that meet specified corporate responsibility
standards The following palicies represent the basis of the
Group's approach to corporate responsibility

Employment policy and employee involvement
The Group's employees are integral to the success of the
business and, as a result, the Group pursues employment
practices which are designed to attract, retain and develop
this talent to ensure the Group retains its strong market
position with motivated and satisfied employees

The Board and senior managers take responsibility for
employment matters and have established suitable policies
and guidehnes Wherever possible, the Group seeks to
benchmark itself against industry best practice Itis the
Group's policy to give all staff an opportunity to share in the
future success of the business

Historically this has been achieved through the SCi 1996
Share Option Plan, which expired in July 2006 Durning the
year the remuneration committee carried out a review of
long-term incentive provision at the Group and a summary of
the recommendations of the review process and proposais
for new long-term incentive plans will be circulated to
shareholders in due course

It 1s Group policy to commuricate with all employees on
major matters to encourage them to take a wider interest in
the affairs of their employing company and the Group This Is
done in a vanety of ways including wa email announcements,
internal intranet bulletins and briefing sessions There are
well established procedures, to ensure that the views of
employees are taken into account in reaching decisions likely
to affect therr interests

The Group assists 11s employees in achieving an
appropriate work/ife balance, by measures including policies
on parental, maternity and paternity leave and flexible
working where appropriate Workplace discnmination or
harassment 1s not tolerated and the Group 1s committed to
providing equal opportunities to all employees

The Group operates a system of annual performance
appraisals and training 1s provided to assist employees to
develop skills and enhance therr professional development
Vacancies are advertised internally and promotion from
within 1s encouraged where possible

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always
fully considered, bearnng in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned In the event of members of staff
becoming disabled every effort 1s made to ensure that their
employment with the Group continues and that appropriate
traiming 1s arranged It 1s the policy of the Group that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled
persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of
other employees

Environmental policy
SCi seeks to ensure that its operations and products cause
the minimum detnmental impact to the environment The
Group's objective 1s to comply with environmental legislation
th all countries in which 1t operates and to promote effective
resource managemenrt, energy efficiency, waste minimisation
and recycling initiatives Due to the nature of its business,
the Group does not have a high environmental impact

Local internal imtiatives include recycling of paper, toner
cartndges and computer equipment, use of fair-trade and
where possible, environmentally frnendly products and
promotion of energy conservation In the UK, the Group
participates in the Cycte to Work Scheme, a government
initative to promote healthier commuting and reduce
environmental pollution

Community
The Group aims to partner with local communities in which 1t
operates by supporting local initiatives and charitable events
SCi encourages Its employees to participate as volunteers in
such activities and supports these inihiatives through
donations, sponsorship, employee time and/or other
contributions During the year the Group participated 1n a
vanety of community retated iniiatives including
> provision of work expernence programmes for secondary
school students to educate young people in technical
skills and business practices within the games industry,
> studio visits, student Internships, lectuning and career day
activities n the US to provide participants with insight into
the game development process, and
> donations of computer equipment and games to local
charities
The Group continues to work with the siaff of the
Northern Regional College tn Northern Ireland (formerly the
Causeway Institute of Further and Higher Education), which
has now expanded its range of courses In games
development beyond the BTEC National Diploma There have
been a number of visits by staff and students from NRC to
vanious Fidos offices and development studios and Eidos
staff have participated In lectures and seminars at NRC In
addition, one of the course tutors spent three months 1n
2006 working at the Group's head office in Wimbledon in
order to build a better understanding of real-life practices
within the wideo games industry
During the 12 months to 30 June 2007, SCi made
chantable donations of £16,000 (2006 £10,400)

32

SCI Entertainment Group Ple Annual Report & Accounts 2007




Directors’ remuneration report :

to the shareholders of SCi Entertainment Group Pic

1 Introduction and compliance

Thes report has been prepared n accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and summarises the Company's
remuneration policy and particularly its applicatron to the
directors The report also describes how the Company
applies the pnnciples of the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance 2003 (the “Code”) in relation to director's
remuneration A resolution to approve this report will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting ("AGM”)

2 The constitution and remlt of the remuneration commitiee
The remuneration committee (the “committee”) 1s appointed
by the Board and currently comprises Nigel Wayne
{Committee Chairman), Roger Ames, Don Johnston and Tim
Ryan The committee’s principal functions are to advise the
Board on the broad framework for executive remuneration, to
determine the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and to recommend and monitor the level and
structure of remuneration for senior management It reviews
the performance of the executive directors and sets the
scale and structure of their remuneration and the basis of
thewr service agreements with due regard to market practice
and the interests of shareholders The committee also
administers the Group's Incentive compensation plans

The committee meets at least 2 times per year and,
additionatly, on an ad hoc basis as necessary The
committee has appointed New Bridge Street Consultants LLP
(“NBSC"), an independent external firm which has no other
connection with the Company, to advise on various aspects
of remuneration During the year, the committee was also
provided with legal services from Addleshaw Goddard LLP
(one of the Company’'s legal advisers)

The Chief Executive attends meetings of the commitiee by
invitation other than when matters concerning her own
remuneration are under consideration No director 1s involved
in deciding his or her own remuneration, whether determined
by the committee or, in the case of the non executives, by
the Board

The committee’s terms of reference are available on the
Group s website

3 Remuneration policy for executive directors

ln determining remuneration packages the committee has

regard to the importance of retaming and motivating

executive directors as well as linking reward to the Group's

performance Within this context, the committee’s policy on

executive director remuneration 1s to

> pay a competitive base salary destgned to attract and
retain executive directors relevant to each director's role,
experience and the external market,

> provide incentive arrangements which are subject to
appropnately talored challenging performance targets
reflecting the Group's objectives and recognise the
importance of proniding sustamed motivation of
management to focus on langer term, as well as annual,
performance, and,

> align the interest of the executive directors with thase of
shareholders
In order to achteve these objectives the committee’s

approach s that a significant proportion of the overall

remuneration package should be inked to the performance
of the Group, through participation in an annual performance
related bonus scheme and long-term incentive arrangements

The committee sets performance critena based on the
financial targets set during the Group's budgeting process,
taking Into account the strategic aims of the Group as well
as the interests of shareholders The targets for each
performance criteria are designed to be challenging

The committee determines whether these criteria have
heen met, based on relevani financial information and
measured on a consistent basts Where necessary, the
committee has access to the expertise of the audit
committee to assist in its determinavon of the extent to
which performance targets have been met

The above policy 15 expected to continue to be applied n
respect of the forthcoming and subsequent years

During the year the committee carned out a review of
long-term incentive provisien at the Group following the
expiration of the SCi1 1996 Share Option Plan in July 2006
Employee share ownership continues to rematn a key
mechanism through which executives and the wider
emplovee base are rewarded and aligned with the Group
objective of creating shareholder value Use of broad based
long-term incentives 1s part of the SCi culture and 1t 15
intended that this will remain the case In future years A
summary of the recommendations of the review process and
proposals for new long term incentive plans will be circulated
to shareholders in due course

4 Remuneration policy and terms of engagement for
non-executive directors
The Company's policy on non-executive director remuneration
IS to pay fees which are in line with market practice, based
upon the experience and experuise of the director concerned
as well as the time commitment and responsibiiues of the
role The fees paid to the Chairman and the other non-
executive directors are determined by the board as a whole

The non-executive directors receive no other benefits with
the exception of a small number of legacy share options
granted upon appointment i 2001 to Tim Ryan and Nigel
Wayne, as detailed on page 37 The Board has determined
that no further share options will be granted te any non-
executive director Existing options held by Tim Ryan and
Nigel Wayne will be exercised or will lapse no tater than
October 2008

Each non executive director 1s appointed for a specified
term subect to re-election and a rolling one month notice
pericd Their letter of appaintment contains no prowsion for
payment or compensation on early termination They are not
eligible for bonus payments and their service 1S not
penstonable Each of the non-executive directors are entitied
to reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in the
course of therr duties

For 2007, the fee for acting as a non-executive director
was £25,000 a year Following the separation of the roles of
Chawrman and Chief Executive on 30 June 2006, the fee for
the non-executive Chairman was set at £85,000 a year with
effect from 1 July 2006 In setting the fee level, advice was
sought from NBSC with consideration being given to fee
levels prevalent among comgpanies of a comparable size to
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SCi and the anticipated time ¢commitment associated with
the role

5 Remuneration packages
(a) Baslc salary
Each executive director’'s base salary 1s set after account 1S
taken of individual performance, responsibilities and
expenence in post Salanes are reviewed penodically with
account taken of salary levels in companies of a comparable
size, sector and pay and employment conditions elsewhere
within the Group

The current salary levels of the executive directors,
effective from 1 July 2007, are set out below (the figures in
brackets reflect salary levels effective as at 30 June 2007)

Jane Cavanagh £414,000 (£400,000)

Bill Enmis £208,889 (£201,825}
Rob Murphy £208,889 (£201,825)
Phil Rogers* £208,889 (£170,775)

* appointed 27 September 2007 Salary review effective
1 November 2007

As set out in our last year's remuneration report, a formal
review of base salary levels was undertaken 1n 2006 with
the next formal review due to take place during 2008 The
salary increases from 1 July 2007, reflect a cost of iving
increase of 3 5%, the same rate which was applied generally
to the senior management team

{b) Benefits in kind

Benefits for the executive directors consist of a car
allowance, private medical and dental insurance, Iife
assurance and permanent health insurance The value of
benefits 1s not pensionable

(e) Pensions
Pension contributions are made on behalf of executive
directors based on 15% of basic salary

{d) Annual performance related bonus
The executive directors participate in an annual bonus
scheme which 1s administered by the committee Payments
under the scheme are based on exceeding the Group's target
profit level, with the actual targets set early in the financial
year for which the bonus (s payable

From 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007 the maximum
potentiat annual bonus award under the scheme was 67% of
basic salary for Rob Murphy and Bill Enmis, and 100% of
basic salary for Jane Cavanagh As the threshold targets for
the year were not achieved, none of the executive directors
earned a bonus under the annual scheme The annual bonus
1s not pensicnable

(e) Long-term incentive plans

The 2008 LTIP

At the Company's AGM on 7 February 2006 shareholders
approved the terms of a long term incentive plan (“LTIP")
which applies to all executive directers and 1s based on
corporate performance in the three year penod to 30 June

2008 (the "2008 LTIP") Under the 2008 LTIP. corporate
performance 1s measured in three ways (as detailed below),
each selected by the commuttee as being challenging and
appropnate cntena given the circumstances that prevalled
and were forecast at the time of grant to be significant over
the LTIP period and which ink awards te the creation of long-
term shareholder value The maximum payment to each
executive director 1s 100% of aggregate basic salary over the
three year period of the 2008 LTIR except that in the event
that tota! EBITDA for the three years ending 30 June 2008
were to exceed £80 miilion, the maximum payment 1s 125%
of aggregate basic salary, provided that all three performance
cntena have been met
The three performance measures used to determine the
amount payable to each director are
{) 40% of the maximum payment will be determined by
reference to cumulative EBITDA This element will be
calculated in accordance with the following scale on a
pro-rata basis

Cumulative EBITDA Proportion of this element payable

Less than £60 million 0%
£60 million — £85 mullion 25%
£65 milion — £70 million 50%
£70 mulhon - £75 million 75%
£75 milion - £80 million 100%

in determining whether this condition has been met, the
committee will primanly have regard to profits generated
from the Group structure as at the time of grant Profit
‘acquired’ as a result of merger or acquisiion activity may
he disregarded and/or result in an appropriate
amendment to this target parameter

{1} 40% of the maximum payment will be determined by
reference to growth in profits The Group must report
growth in profit before tax in each of the three years
ending 30 June 2008 The committee selected this
measure as an industry specfic target for the period of
transition from one generation of gaming platform to the
next which, for the games indusiry, has historically been a
volatile and challenging penod in which to achieve
consistent year on year growth In the view of the
committee at the tme of grant, positive year on year
growth in each of the three years ending 30 June 2008
was sufficiently chaltenging and, therefore, it would have
been inappropriate to set a range of growth targets As
with performance measure (1), profit growth wili pnmanly be
measured 1n respect of the Group struciure as at present,
and growth achieved by acquisiton may be disregarded

For the year ended 30 fune 2007, profit growth

{measured In EBITDA} was not achigved over 2006
comparable, therefore this element of the 2008 LTIP wall
not be met and no payment will accrue to the executive
directors

() 20% of the maximum payment will be determined by
reference to share price performance Over the penod
between 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2008 as a whole, SCi's
share price must outperform the FTSE Media Index
{formerly the FTSE Media & Entertainment Index)

The commitiee considered at the time of grant that a
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

companson relative to the FTSE Media Index which
contains similar businesses was more appropniate than a
companson with a general FTSE Index As with
performance measure {1}, share price growth which
outperforms the FTSE Media Index over the transition
perod between gaming platforms will be difficult to
achieve Given that not all other companies within the
Media Index will be facing that same challenge over the
2008 LTIP period, the committee considered that a
specific target out-performance percentage was not
appropnate Awards under the LTIP are not pensionable

Share options
The Group has histoncally operated the SCi 1996 share
Option Plan (the “Plan”) which expired tn Juty 2006 No
further share options were granted to the executive directors
during the pernod under review Detasls of share options
exercised by the executive directors duning the year are set
out in item 9@ on page 37

Under the Plan, options were granted to ehgible
participants at the market pnce at the date of grant Options
may be exer¢ised at any time between the third and seventh
anniversaries of date of grant, provided that specific
performance conditions have been fulfilled

The performance conditions require the Company's share
price to have outperformed the FTSE Media Index over the
period from the date of grant to exercise The committee

6 Service contracts

chose share pnice growth as the performance condition for
share options as 1t believed 1t at the ume to be an
appropriate measure of long-term shareholder return The
requirement to exceed the performance of the FTSE Media
Index was considered to be challenging

Under the terms of a long-term service agreement, Rob
Murphy s currently ehgible for further share option awards
totalling 250,000 share opuons in aggregate As with all the
options previously granted, these options may not be
exercised for three years and may then only be exercised
subject to meeting the performance criteria set out above
These option awards, contained within the long-term service
agreement, were constdered by the commutiee to form an
important part of a remuneration package that motivated and
retained a key executive within the Company and to further
align his interests with those of shareholders

(F) Proposed long-term incentive arrangements
As stated above, the committee has conducted a review of
{ong-term incentive provision of the Group The conclusions
of this review, including proposals for new longterm incentive
plans, will be circulated o shareholders in due course
Where appropnate and approved by the remuneration
committee, outstanding legacy option awards including those
for Rob Murphy referred to above, or equity incentives of an
equivalent value, will be granted under the new plans

Al of the executive directors, in ine with the commuttee’s policy, have service agreements which provide for no more than 12
months’ notice from either party Details of the directors’ terms of appointment and notice penods are as follows

Date of appointment

Expiry date of current term/Notice penod

Jane Cavanagh 3 May 1996 Terminable on 12 months' rolling notice

Bill Ennis 3 May 1996 Terminabie on 12 months' rolling notice

Raob Murphy 21 Apnl 1997 Terminable on 6 months’ rolhng notice

Phil Rogers 27 September 2007 Terminable on 6 months’ rolling notice

Tim Ryan 19 October 2001 26 September 2010/ Terminable on 1 month's rolling notice
Nigel Wayne 20 July 2001 12 July 2010/Terminable on 1 month's rolling notice

Roger Ames 25 September 2006 25 September 2009/Terminable on 1 month's rolling notice

Don Johnston 26 March 2007

26 March 2010/Terminable on 1 month’s rolling notice

Jane Cavanagh would be eligible to receive payment in lieu of notice on termination which would include base salary, benefits
and annual bonus calculated by reference to bonus opportunity accrued during the relevant year and any unexpired notice
pertod based on average bonuses paid over the previous three years Jane Cavanagh would also be entitled to retain her
existing share options pursuant to the rules of the SC1 1996 Share Option Plan, unless she 13 terminated for gross
misconduct There 1s no enhancement to these terms If termination occurs following a change of control of the Company

There are no provisions for compensation to be payable in the event of early termination in the service contracts of Roh
Murphy, Bill Enmis and Phil Rogers other than for payment in lieu of notice

The committee recognises that executive directors may be invited to accept external non-execuiive directorships and that
this can broaden the knowledge and expenence of directors for the benefit of the Company Accordingly, subject to Board
approval, executive directors may accept such appointments provided they are not likely to lead to a conflict of interest or
constrain therr abilities to fulfil therr duties They are also allowed to retain any fees paid under such appointments Durng the
year Bill Ennis served as a non-executive director of Jalepo Ltd for which he did not recewve any fees No other executive

director currently holds external appointments
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7 Performance graph

The following graphs show the Company s total shareholder return (“TSR”) since 30 June 2002 relative to the FTSE Media
Index and the FTSE Software & Computer Services Index TSR represents share price growth pius remnvested dividends The two
Iindices have been selected as they each provide a broad equity market index against which the Company's performance can be
compared for these mited purposes, recognising the unigueness of the niche market in which the Company operates and the
absence of any material comparator UK companies

Total shareholder return Total shareholder return
Relative 1o FTSE All-Share Media Index Relative to FTSE All-Share Software & Computer Services Index
— SC) Entertainment Group = SCi Entertainment Group

1300 = FTSE Al-Share Meacia index 1.300 = FTSE AlFShare Sofiware & Computer Scrvices Index
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8 Individual directors' remuneration
The remuneration of each director for the 12 months ended 30 June 2007 was as follows

Basic salary/ Annuat Taxable Total Total Pension Pension
fees' ponus” benefits 2007 2006° 2007" 20086*
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s FOO0s
Executive

Jane Cavanagh 407 7 1815 14 8 604 0 394 3 612 459
Bill Ennis 2057 1287 11 4 3458 2550 309 293
Rob Murphy 2057 1287 104 3448 2650 309 293

Non-execttive
Tim Ryan 86 6 - - 866 250 - -
Nigel Wayne 255 - - 255 275 - -
Roger Ames 196 - - 196 - - -
Don Johnston 67 - - 67 - - -
Totals 957 5 438 9 36 6 1,433 0 956 8 1230 104 5

1 Represents salanes paid from 1 July 2006 to 6 July 2007

2 Represents bonuses paid in respect of the 12 months to 30 June 2006
3 2006 totals exclude annual bonuses dealt with above

4 Pension represents contributions to money purchase schemes

Information relating to directors’ remuneration in sections 8 and 9 in tabular form has been audited and an opimion (n that
regard forms part of the auditors’ report on page 39

36 5CI Entertainment Group Pic Annual Report & Accounts 2007




Directors’ remuneration report continued

9 Directors’ Interests in share options

The interests of the directors In share options of the Company at 30 June 2007 are set out in the table below

1 July 2006 Granted Exercised? 30 luno 2007  Exercise pnce
Number Number Number Number Pence Exercisable
Jane Cavanagh 75,000 - {75,000) - 39 11 December 2001 to
11 December 2005*
80,000 - - 80,000 81 20 August 2004 to 20 August 2008
80,000 - - 80,000 72 16 June 2006 to 16 June 2010
43,865 - - 43,865 1255 31 March 2007 to 31 March 2011
270,000 - - 270,000 3335 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2012
548,865 - (75,0000 473,865
Bill Enqus 50,000 - (50,000) - 39 11 December 2001 to
11 December 2005!
80,000 - - 80,000 81 20 August 2004 to 20 August 2008
170,000 - - 170,000 72 16 June 2006 to 16 June 2010
410,000 - - 410,000 1005 27 Auvgust 2007 to 27 August 2011
270,000 - - 270,000 3335 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2012
980,000 - (50,000) 930,000
Rob Murphy 50,000 - (50,0000 - 39 11 December 2001 to
11 December 2005!
41,000 - (41,000) - 565 8 March 2002 to 8 March 2006
80,000 - — 80,000 81 20 August 2004 to 20 August 2008
84,809 - - 84,809 1255 31 March 2007 to 31 March 2011
85,000 - - 85,000 1005 27 August 2007 to 27 August 2011
270,000 - - 270,000 3335 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2012
75,000 - - 75,000 484 17 October 2008 to 17 Cctober 2012
685,809 - (91,000) 594,809
Tim Ryan? 20,000 - - 20,000 85 1 October 2004 to 1 October 2008
Nigel Wayne? 17,500 - - 17,500 47 5 18 July 2004 to 18 July 2008
2,252,174 - {216,000} 2,036,174

directors upon the exercise of options was £933,707 (2006 £nil)

Wayne will be exercised or will lapse no later than 2008

outperformed the FTSE Media Index over the period from the date of grant to exercise

! Dunng the 12 month penod to 30 June 2006 the committee amended the rutes of the SCi Share Option Scheme to extend
the exercise period of options granted on 11 December 1998 and 8 March 1999 where, immediately prior to the expiry of
the exercise penod, the Company was 1n a close penod or otherwise subject to a prohibition on share dealing by directors
In such circumstances the exercise perod was extended until one month following the end of such penod

2 The market price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise was 475p The aggregate gain before tax made by the

' Share options are no longer granted te non-executive directors Existing opttons granted in 2001 to Tim Ryan and Nigel

Performance conditions applying to all the above share option awards require the Company’s share price 1o have
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10 Share price
The market price of the ordinary shares at 6 July 2007 was 518 5p and the range durning the period was 419p to 525p

11 AGM and documents available for inspection
In accordance with statutory requirements, an ordinary resolution to approve this remuneration report will be proposed at the
Company s AGM

The directars’ service contracts and letters of appointment, together with the statutory register of directors’ interests
(containing full details of directors’ shareholdings and other interests), are avallable for inspection by shareholders at the
Company’s registered office dunng normal business hours and at the AGM

On behalf of the Board,

A/ ‘

Nigel Wayne
Chairman - Remuneration committee
7 December 2007
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Report of the independent auditors

to the shareholders of SCi Entertainment Group Plc

We have audited the Consolidated and parent Company
financial statements (the “financial statements™) of SCi
Entertainment Group Plc for the year ended 30 June 2007
which comprise the consolidated income statement, the
consohidated and parent Company balance sheets, the
consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the retated notes These
financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the
information in the directors’ remuneration report that s
descrnbed as having been audited

Respective responsibilitles of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the annual report
and the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS} as adopted by the European Umon, and for preparing
the parent Company financial statements and the directors’
remuneration report In accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
statement of directors’ responsibilities SCi Entertainment
Group Plc has complied with the requirements of rules 986
and 9 8 8 of the Listing Rules in prepanng its annual report

Qur responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and
the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited
In accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand)

We report to you our opinien as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report
to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and whether, in addition, the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with Article 4 of the IAS Regulation Additionally,
we report to you whether, the information given in the directors’
report 15 consistent with those financial statements We also
report t0 you If, In our opinion, the Company has not kept
proper accounting records, If we have not received all the
informatien and explanations we require for our audit, or If
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the corporate governance statement
reflects the Company’s comphance with the rine provistons of
the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the
Listing Rules of the Financial Seraces Authonty, and we report If
1t does not We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on intermal control cover all nsks and controls, or
form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures or Its nsk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the annual report
and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited
financial statements The other information comprnises only
the chairman’s statement, chief executive’s statement, the
operating and financial review, the directors’ brographies, the
directors’ report, the corporate governance statement,
corporate responsibility statement and the unaudited part of
the directors’ remuneration report We consider the
implications for our report If we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or materal Inconsistencies with the

financial statements Our responsibiiities do not extend to
any other information

Qur report has been prepared pursuant to the
requirements of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose No person i1s entitled to rely on this report unless
such a person s a person entitled to rely upon this report by
virtue of and for the purpose of the Companies Act 1985 or
has been expressly authonsed to do so by our prior written
consent Save as above, we do not accept responsibility for
this report to any other person or for any other purpose and
we hereby expressly disclaim any and all such liability

Basls of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and reland) 1ssued by the
Audiung Practices Beard An audit includes examination, on a
test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures In the financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Group’s and Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient ewidence to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and
the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other wregulanty or error In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited

Opinlon

In our opimion

> the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view, In accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 30 June
2007 and of its loss for the year then ended,

> the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,

» the parent Company financial statements give a true and
fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent
Company's affarrs as at 30 June 2007,

> the parent Company financial statements and the part of
the directors’ remuneration report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, and

> the information given in the directors’ report ts consistent

ith ¢he financial gtaiements

Chartered A
London

7 December 2007
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Consolidated income statement

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
Notes £m £m
Revenue 2 1440 1791
Cost of sales (87 Q) {75 3)
Gross profit 570 103 8
Development costs — exceptional ' 6 (13 8) (11)
— other (19 0) (27 0}
Advertising (13 7) (19 4)
Administrative costs - exceptional 6 (0 6) Q"N
— other {41 3) (47 8)
Administrative expenses {88 4) (96 O)
(Loss) profit from operations 4 {31 4) 78
Finance income 3 12 o7
Finance costs 3 {05) {0 3)
Profit on disposal of associate 06 -
Share of profit (loss} in associate 01 (0 1}
{Loss) profit before taxation (30 0) 81
Tax credit 7 19 54
{Loss) profit for the year (28 1) 135
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent (28 1) 134
Minonty interest - 01
(28 1) 135
2007 2006
{Loss) earnings per share Ponce Pence
Basic 8 (35 3) 185
Diluted 8 (35 3) 177

The notes on pages 44 to 70 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

Attributable to equity holders of the parent Company
Foreign Share  Employee
currency based benefit
Share Share Merger Capital  translation comp- trust share Retained Minonty Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve ensation reserve profit Total interest cquity
£m im im £m £m £m £m £m £m £m E£m
1 July 2005 35 574 69 9 63 - 03 {09) 15 1380 143 1523
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 13 4 13 4 - 134
Charged to equity
New shares 1ssued 02 17 4 - - - - - - 176 - 176
Share 1s3ue ¢osts - (02} - - - - - - (02) - (0 2)
Issue of shares for
remalnlng
10% of Eidos 01 - 114 - - - - - 115 (12 7) {(12)
Share based
compensation - - - — - 44 - - 44 - 44
Foreign exchange - - - - 05 - - - 05 - 05
Total charged
to equity 03 17 2 11 4 - 05 4 4 - - 338 12 7) 211
Total income and
expense forthe year 03 172 114 - 05 4 4 - 134 47 2 (12 7} 345
30 June 2006 38 74 6 813 63 05 47 {09 14 9 1852 16 1868
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (28 1) (28 1) - (28 1)
Charged to equity
New shares 1ssued 05 46 6 - - - - - - 47 1 - 47 1
Share 1ssue costs - (0 9} - - - - — - (0 9) - (09)
Share based
compensation - - - - - 24 - - 24 - 24
Purchase of minority
interest in Proein SL - - - - - - - - - (16) (16)
Share based
compensaton
moved to habilities* - - - - - (2 0} - - (20) - {(20)
Foreign exchange - - - - (11) - - - {11} - {11)
Total charged
to equity a5 457 - - 11) 04 - - 455 (16) 43 9
Total income and
expense for the year 05 457 - - 11) 04 - (28 1) 17 4 {16) 158
30 June 2007 43 1203 813 63 (0 6) 51 (09) (132) 2026 - 2026
* Transfer to labilities of amounts In respect of cash settled overseas staff equity schemes previously classified within
reserves
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Consplidated balance sheet

at 30 June 2007

20 June 2007 30 June 2006

Notes £m £m
Non current assets
Property plant and equipment 10 65 32
Goodwill 11 27 47
Other intangible assets 12 102 7 1057
Capitalised development costs 13 818 456 1
Investment In associates 14 06 04
Deferred tax assets 18 01 21
194 4 162 2
Current assets
Inventory i5 72 52
Trade and other receivables 16 41 3 575
Cash and cash equivalenis 314 372
799 99 9
Assets classified as held for sale 17 - 02
Total assets 2 274 3 262 3
Non current liabilities
Provisions 22 62 -
Deferred tax habihties 18 132 154
194 154
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 300 298
Tax liabilities 20 4.1 73
Accruals and deferred income 101 80
Provisions 2 81 150
523 601
Total Habilities 2 17 755
Equity
Share capital 23 43 38
Share premium 25 1203 746
Merger reserve 25 813 813
Capital reserve 25 63 63
Foreign currency translation reserve 25 (0 6) 05
Share based compensation 25 51 47
Employee benefit trust share reserve 25 (09) (09
Retained profits 25 (13 2) 14 9
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent Company 2026 1852
Minorty interests - 16
Total equity 2026 186 8
Total liabilities and equities 274 3 262 3

The notes on page 44 to 70 form part of these financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 7 December 2007 and signed
on its behalf by

Jaue CGWOW‘OSL" ﬁm
Jane Cavanagh Phil Rogers

Director Director

42 SCi Entertainment Group Plc Annual Report & Accounts 2007




Consolidated cash flow statement

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

12 months to 12 months 10
30 June 2007 30 lune 2006
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Net (loss) profit from ordinary actwities (30 0) 81
Share based compensation 22 44
Depreciation on plant, property and equipment and software amortsation charged to
the imcome statement 4 1.6 18
Amortisation of brands and technology 4 110 106
Impairment of goodwill 27 24
Financing income (12) e
Financing costs 05 03
Net loss {profit) made by associates (01) 01
Profit on disposal of associate {0 6) -
(13 9) 270
Decrease (increase) In trade and other recevables 14.4 (26 6)
Increase In inventories (26) (14)
Release of capitalised development costs 328 281
(Decrease) mcrease In trade and other payables, accruals, deferred income and provisions (49) 63
Cash generated from operations 258 334
Income taxes pasd (23) {0 5)
Cash flows from operating actlvities 237 329
Investing activities
Payment for subsidiary undertakings {3 9) -
Cash acquired with subsidiaries 09 -
Acquisition expenses {0 2) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible software (5 5) (22)
Interest received 12 07
Expenditure on capitalised development costs {68 5) (57 4)
Sale of investments in associated undertakings 08 -
Net cash used in investing activities (75 2) (58 9)
Financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital 471 17 6
Share i1ssue expenses (0 9) {02)
Interest paid {0 5) {0 3)
Net cash generated by financing activities 457 17 1
Net (decrease) in net cash and cash equlvalents (5 8) (8 9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 372 46 1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 314 372
The notes on page 44 to 70 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

1 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies of the Group are
summansed below

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS and IFRIC interpretations} 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (*IASB"), as endorsed by the
EU, and, with those parts of the Companies Act 1985
applicable to preparnng financral statements under IFRS For
the year ended 30 June 2008, the transitional requirements
of IFRS 1 were adopted in relation to business combinations,
cumulative translation differences, share based payments
and financial instruments, detalls of which are inctuded in
note 32 of the 2006 financial statements

SCu Entertainment Group Plc 1s domiciled in England,
where it 1s Incorporated as a public imited company Its
registered office 1s Wimbledon Bridge House, 1 Hartfield
Road, Wimbledon, London SW19 3RU The Group 1S &
developer and publisher of computer and console based
entertainment SCr Entertainment Group Plc 15 the holding
company of the Group and the ultimate parent Company

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements consolidate the
financial statements of SCi Entertainment Group Plc and its
subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 30 June 2007

The results of subsidianes acquired are consolidated for
the penod from the date on which control passed
Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method
with goodwill, representing any excess of the fair value of the
consideration given over the fair value of the identifiable
assets and habilities acquired

Accounting periods

The accounting reference date of the Group i1s 30 June The
current years results are for the period to 6 July 2007 The
comparative years results are for the year to 30 June 2006

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of
depreciation and provision for impairment Depreciation is
provided on all property plant and equipment, at rates
calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value,
of each asset on a straight-line basts over its expected
useful life, as follows

> Leasehold improvements over the life of the lease

> Equipment and vehicles 3 to 5 years

Goodwill
All Company business combinations are recorded using the
acquisition method Goodwill results from the acquisition of
subsidianes, associates and Joint entities and carresponds
to the difference between the acquisition cost and the fair
value of the assets, labilities and contingent liabifities
identified at the date of acquisition

Positive goodwill 1s not amortised but 15 subject to annual
impairment tests at the end of each accounting penod The
recoverable value of goodwill 1s then estimated on the basis
of the higher of market value or value In use Value in use 1s
defined as the present value relating to the cash flow
generating units with which the goodwil!l 1s associated When
the market value or value 1n use 15 less than the accounting
value, iImparment ts recorded and 1s irreversible

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired by the Group are recorded at their
valuation {brands and technology) or cost (software) less the
total of amortisation and impairment In accordante with
IAS38 “Intangible assets”, only elements whose cost can be
determined reliably and for which 1t 1s probable that future
benefits exist are recorded as non current assets

Intangible assets are amortised over the expected perod
of use

> Brands 15 years
> Technology 8 years
> Software 3 years

Brands and technology relates to trademarks, characters,
Images, engines and designs acquired by the Group that
were dentifiable and measurable These assets are
amorused over a period of 15 and eight years respectively
based on the useful economic lives, applicable to the
individual charactenistics of the respective asset At the
close of each fiscal year these assets are also subject to
impairment tests whereby the recoverable value of brands
and technology 15 then estimated on the basis of either
market value or value in use Value in use ts defined as the
present value relating to the cash flow with which the assets
are assoclated

Software relates to apphcations not required 1o run
hardware and are amortised over three years
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 3¢ June 2007

1 Accounting policies continued
Capltaliset development costs
Captalised development costs correspond to the costs
incurred in the development of new games, including re-
usable technology costs carned forward from earlier versions
of game sernes, and costs incurred to devetop engine
technology to the extent that the Group has determined that
> the product/engine 1s techmcally and commercially
feasible,
> the product/engine 1s clearly defined and related
expenditure 15 separately identifiable,
> current and future costs are expected 10 be exceeded by
future earnings,
> the Group has the intention and ability to complete the
game/engine development and use or resell it,
> adequate resources exist for the product to be completed,
and
> the valuation attributed to the re-usable technelogy element
of a game I1s assessed by management with appropriate
internal expert technological assistance at the time of
release of a game for which there 1s a high expectation
that a sequel game will be produced and released
Game costs are amortised over the period that prudently
simulates the flow of revenues from a typical game, in the
perod starting from the month of release of the game
Engines and technology are amortised on a straight hine
hasis over the estimated useful hfe of the engine or
technology, commencing from the point at which the engine
or technology 1s 1n a state from which 1t can be usefully
employed on multiple projects in the studio of creation and
other locations
At the close of each fiscal year game and engine costs
are reviewed by project for any loss of value compared to the
net book value at that time
Where the expected future contribution of a game does
not exceed the total expected costs to complete the
development an impairment provision 1s made

Associated undertakings

Associated undertakings are undertakings in which the
Group holds a long term interest and over which it has the
power to exercise significant influence but not control The
Group's share of profits less losses from associated
undertakings 1s included in the consolidated income
statement on the equity accounting basis and its interest in
their net assets included in investments in the balance
sheet

Inventory

Inventory comprise finished goods for resale, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net reahisable value Costis
calculated as cost of materials Net realisable value 15 based
on estimated selling price, less further drsposal costs

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale when
» they are avallable for iImmediate sale,
> management 15 committed to a plan to sell,
> 1t 15 unhkely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn,
> an active programme to locate a buyer has been intiated,
> the asset or disposal group 15 being marketed at a
reasonable price 1n relation to its fair value, and
> a sale 1s expected to complete within 12 months from the
date of classification
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as hetd
for sale are measured at the lower of
> their carrying amount immediately prior to being classified
as held for sale in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy, and
> fair value less costs to sell
Following therir classification as held for sale, non current
assets (including those 1n a disposal group) are not
depreciated The results of operations disposed duning the
year are included in the consolidated income statement up
to the date of disposal

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for habilities of uncertain timing or
amount that have ansen as a result of past transactions and
are discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the hability

Taxation
Corporation tax payable 1s provided on taxable profits at
prevailling rates
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

1 Accounting policies continued
Deferred taxatlon
Deferred income tax I1s calculated using the asset-hability
method of tax allocation for all temporary differences ansing
hetween the book vaiue of assets and labilities and thewr tax
bases, except for differences ansing on the itial recognition
of goodwill
Deferred tax assets and habilities are recogmised where
the carrying amount of an asset or hablity in the balance
sheet differs to its tax base, except for differences ansing
on
> the initial recognition of goodwill,
> goodwlll for which- amortisation 15 not tax deductible,
> the initial recognition of an asset or hability in a
transaction which 1s not a business comtination and at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting or
taxable profit, and
> Investments (in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
where the Group i1s able to control the timing of the
reversal of the difference and 1t 1s probable that the
difference will not reverse (n the foreseeable future
Deferred taxation 1s shown on the balance sheet
separately from current tax assets and habilities and
categorised among non current items
Deferred tax assets and labiltes are offset when the
Group has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and habilities and the deferred tax assets and
habilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authonty on
either
The same taxable Group company or,
Different Group entities which intend to either settle
current tax assets and habilities on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future penod in which significant amounts of
deferred tax assets or habilities are expected to be
settled or recovered

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by Group entities In a currency
other than the currency of the prmary economic environment
in which it operates {the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur Foreign
currency monetary assets and habidities are translated at the
rates ruling at the batance sheet date Exchange differences
ansing on the retranslation of unsettled monetary assets
and liabilities are similarly recognised immediately in the
income statement, except for foreign currency borrowings
qualifying as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation

On consolidation, the results of overseas operalions are
translated into sterling at rates approximating to those ruling
when the transactions took place All assets and habilities of
overseas operations, mcluding goodwill ansing on the
acquisition of those operations, are translated at the rate
ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences
ansing on translating the opening net assets at opening rate
and the results of overseas operations at actual rate are
recognised directly in equity (the “foreign currency translation
reserve”) Exchange differences recogrised in the income
statement of Group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long term monetary ttems farming part
of the Group's net investment in the overseas operation
concerned are reclassified to the fereign exchange reserve if
the 1item 1s denominated in the functional currency of the
Group or the overseas operation concerned On disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised In the foreign exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are transferred to the
income statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the
following categories, depending on the purpose for which the
asset was acquired The Group's accounting policy for each
category 1s as follows

Fair vaiue through profit or loss This category comprises only
inthe-money denvatives They are carned in the balance
sheet at far value with changes In fair value recognised In
the income statement The Group does not have any assets
held for trading nor does 1t voluntarily classify any financial
assets as being at fair value through profit or loss

Loans and receivables These assets are non-derivative
financiat assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted tn an active market They anse principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), but also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset They are carried at cost less any provision
for impairment

Held-tomatunty investments These assets are non-denvative
financial assets with fixed or determi:nable payments and
fixed matunties that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and abihity to hold to matunty These
assets are measured at amortised cost, with changes
through the income statement

Avatlable-for-sale Non-dernvative financial assets not included
In the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
and comprise the Group's strategic investments In entities
not quahfying as subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled
entities They are carned at fair value with changes 1n fair
value recognised directly in equity Where a decline in the fawr
vaiue of an available-for sate financial asset constitutes
ohjective evidence of impairment, the amount of the |oss is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

1 Accounting polictes continued

Financial liabilities

The Group classHies its financial habilities nto one of two

categones, depending on the purpose for which the asset

was acquired The Group's accounting policy for each

category 15 as follows

Fair value through profit or loss This category comprises only

out-ofthe-money derivatives They are carned tn the balance

sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in

the income statement

Other financial habihities Other financial habilities include the

following items

> Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabiities,
which are recogmised at amortised cost

> Bank borrowings are imitially recognised at fair value
Unless stated otherwise this equates to the amount
advanced net of any transaction costs directly attnbutable
to the tssue of the instrument Such interest bearng
lrabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, which ensures
that any interest expense over the period to repayment 1s
at a constant rate on the balance of the habihity carned in
the balance sheet “Interest expense” in this context
includes imitial transaction costs and premia payable on
redemption, as well as any interest payable while the
hability 15 outstanding

Completion bonding
Completion bonding provides financial assurance that a
product will be developed on time, on budget and in
accordance with agreed specifications In the event of delay
or failure, the cost of the project will be guaranteed by the
bond rather than borne by the Group

Development costs covered by a completion bond are
treated in the same manner as all other development costs
and are capitalised in the balance sheet until ime of release
If a completion bond 15 utilised then these costs will be
released from the balance sheet as the project 1S passed over
to the completion bond company and the amounts recewed
from the completion bond company will be offset against the
development costs expensed te the ncome statement

The cost of holding the bond i1s expensed over the period
insured

Leases
Where substantially all of the nsks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to the
group (a “finance lease”}, the asset 1s treated as if it had
been purchased outright The amount initially recognised as
an asset |5 the present value of the minimum lease
paymentis payable over the term of the lease The
corresponding lease commitment 1S shown as a habihty
Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest
The interest element 15 charged to the income statement
over the penod of the lease and 1s calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability The
capital element reduces the balances owed to the lessor
Where substantially all of nsks and rewards tncidental to
ownershup are retained by the lessor (an “operating lease”),
the totat rentals payable under the lease are charged to the
income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term
The land and buildings elements of property leases are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classificalion

Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT”) share reserve
The cost of the Company s shares held by the EBT 1s
deducted from shareholders’ funds in the Group balance
sheet Any gain or loss by the EBT on disposal of the shares
it holds 1S also recognised directly in sharehoiders’ funds to
the extent that it exceeds amounts due from the EBT in
relation to the set up of the share trust Other assets and
liabilities of the EBT (including borrowings) are recognised as
assets and liabihwes of the Group

Any shares held by the EBT are treated as cancelled for
the purpose of calculating earnings per share

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprses (a) sales of games to retalers and
external distributors at invoiced and accrued amounts less
value added tax and provision aganst any subsequent returns
The Group makes provision against any subsequent returns or
price protection, {b) royalty payments recewved or accrued from
external distnbutors under licence of the nght to distribute
games In certain territones Where advance payments against
royalties are recewved under licence, In so far as the Group's
obligations have been fulfilled, such advances are recognised
at the pont at which they become non-returnable, and

(c) royalty payments received or accrued from third parties
under licence of the nght to explort the Group's intellectual
property on other media Turnover from sales of games IS
recognised at the point at which the game 1s delivered

Long-term incentive plan for executive directors

future payments under the Group’s long-term incentive plan
are estimated and charged to the consolidated income
statement account over the remaining period to which they
relate A charge 1s made when it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and when the future payments can be
relably estimated
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

1 Accounting policies continued

Pensions

For defined contribution schemes, the amount charged to the
consolidated income statement in respect of pension costs
1$ the contnbutions payable in the year Differences between
contributions payable In the year and contnibutions actually
paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the
halance sheet

Share based compensation
Where share options are awarded to employees, the far
value of the options at the date of grant 1s charged to the
Incorme statement over the vesting period Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity Instruments expected to vest at each
balance sheet date so that, ultmately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting penod 1s based on the
number of options that eventually vest Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the options
granted As long as ail other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge 1s made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied The cumulative expense IS not
adjusted for fallure to achieve a market vesting condition

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase n the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and afier the modification, 1s
also charged to the income statement over the rematning
vesting period

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees, the income statement 1s charged with the
fair value of goods and services received

The Group also operates a phantom share option
scheme An option pricing model 1S used to measure the
Group’s liability at each balance sheet date, taking into
account the terms and conditions on which the bonus 1s
awarded and the extent to which employees have rendered
service Movements In the liability {(other than cash
payments) are recognised in the income statement

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are those which are separately identfied
by virtue of their size or incidence to allow a full
understanding of the underlying performance of the Group

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the
future Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
based on historical expenence and ather factors, including
expectations of future events that are belteved to be
reasonable under the circumstances [n the future, actuat
expenence may deviate from these esumates and
assumptions The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabibties within the next
financial year are discussed below

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue of sales of games to retailers
and externat distnbutors Based on past experience with
stmilar sales, the Group makes pravision against any

subsequent returns or price protection The Group therefore
recognises revenue on these transactions with corresponding
provision against the revenue for estimate of returns and
price protection

impairment of goodwill

The Group 13 required to test, on an annual basis, whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment The recoverable amount
1s determined based on value in use calculations The use of
this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and
the choice of a discount rate in order to calculate the present
vatue of the cash flows Actual outcomes may vary

Useful hves of intangtble assets and property, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are
amortised or depreciated over their useful lives Useful lives
are based on the management’s esimates of the period that
the assets will generate revenue, which are penodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness Due to the long life
of the assets, changes to the estimates used can result in
significant vanations in the carrying value

inventory

The Company reviews the net realisable value of and demand
for its inventory on a quarterly basis to ensure recorded
inventory 1s stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value
Factors that could impact estimated demand and selling
prices are the timing and success of fuiure technological
innovations, competitor actions, supplier prices and economic
trends If total inventory losses differ from management
estimates, the Group's consolidaied net income in 2007
would have improved/declined, depending upon whether the
actual results were better/worse, respectively, than expected

Income taxes

The Group 1s subject to income tax in several junsdictions
and significant judgement 1s required In determining the
provision for income taxes Dunng the ordinary course of
business, there are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain As a
result, the Company recognises tax hablites based on
estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be
due These tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the
Company's belief that its tax return positions are
supportable, the Company believes that certan positions are
likely to be challenged and may not be fully sustained upon
review by tax authonties The Company believes that its
accruals for tax habilities are adequate for all open audit
years based on 1ts assessment of many factors including
past expenence and interpretations of tax law This
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may
involve a series of complex judgments about future events
To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters 15
different than the amounts recorded, such differences will
impact income tax expense in the period 1N which such
determination 1s made
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

1 Accounting policies continued

Share based payment

The Group has two types of share-based remuneration
schemes for employees Employee services received, and
the corresponding increase it equity, are measured by
reference 10 the farr value of the equity instruments at the
date of grant, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions Far value of the share options 1s estimated by
using a binomial valuation model, on the date of grant based
on certain assumptions Those assumptions are described in
note 24 and include, among others, risk free interest rate,
expected volatiity and expected hfe of the options

Legal proceedings

In accordance with IFRS the Group only recognises a
provision where there Is a present obligation from a past
event, a transfer of economic benefits 1s probable and the
amount of costs of the transfer can be esttmated reliably In
instances where the critena are not met, a contingent hability
may be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
Reahsation of any contingent ilabilites not currently
recognised or disclosed in the financial statements could
have a matenal effect on the Group’s financial position
Application of these accounting principles to legal cases
requires the Group's management to make determinations
about various factual and legal matters beyond its control
The Group reviews outstanding legal cases following
developments In the legal proceedings and at each balance
sheet date, in order to assess the need for provisions In its
financial statements Among the factors considered in
making decisions on provisions are the nature of litigation,
claim or assessment, the legal process and potential level of
damages in the junsdiction v which the hitigation, claim or
assessment has been brought, the progress of the case
(including the progress after the date of the financial
statements but before those statements are issued), the
opinions or views of legal advisers, experience on similar
cases and any decision of the Group’s management as to
how 1t will respond to the litigation, claim or assessment

New Accounting Standards

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations {o
existing standards have been pubhshed that are mandatory
for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after

1 July 2007 or later penods and which the Group has
decided not to adopt early These are

IFRS 7, Financial Instruments disclosures (effective for
accounting pernods beginming on or after 1 January 2007)

{AS 1, Presentation of financial statements (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007)

IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements A Rewised
Presentation {effective for accounting penods beginming on or
after 1 January 2009) The revised IAS 1.1s stiHl to be
endorsed by the EU

IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

{AS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised) {effective for accounting
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2008) The revised
IAS 2315 still to be endorsed by the EU

IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
(effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 November 2006)

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions
(effective for accounting periods beginming on or after
1 March 2007)

IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008)
IFRIC 12 1s still to be endorsed by the EU

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008)
IFRIC 13 1s still to be endorsed by the EU

IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
(effective for accounting penods beginning on or after

1 January 2008) IFRIC 14 1s stl 1o be endorsed by the EU

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these
standards and interpretations will have a matenal impact on
the Group's results in the period of imtial appheation
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

2 Segmental analysis 12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
Primary Segment Geographic £m £m
Revenue by destination
United Kingdom 282 41 9
Europe 56 3 67 4
United States of America 491 64 8
Rest of World 104 50
Total revenue 144 0 1791
(Loss) profit before tax by destination
United Kingdom* (34 3) {19)
Europe ({0 4) 43
United States of America 37 57
Rest of World 10 -
(Loss) profit before tax {30 0) 81
* Central costs have been included within the United Kingdom results
Net assets (liabilities) Depremation and
As at 30 June 2007 Assets Liabtites Net assels ar:fo;g;z:;g addﬁirl":tsa*l
Geographlcal segment fm £m Im £m £m
United Kingdom 220 4 (49 7) 1707 14 22
Europe 343 (11 5) 228 06 09
United States of Amenca 194 {10 5) 89 02 23
Rest of World 02 - 02 - -
Total 274 3 (71.7) 2026 22 54
As at 30 June 2006
Geographical segment
United Kingdom 186 1 (41 9) 144 2 14 13
Europe 435 (17 2) 263 08 08
United States of America 324 (16 3) 161 04 01
Rest of World 03 (0 1) 02 - -
Total 262 3 (75 5) 186 8 26 22

* Capital additions include additions to plant, property, equipment and intangible software
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

2 Segmental analysis continued

12 months to 12 menths to
30 Junc 2007 30 June 2006
Secondary segment Business segments £m £m
Revenue by business segment
Publishing 752 145 3
Distnbution 601 286
Licensing 87 52
Total revenue 144 0 1791
(Loss) profit before tax by business segment
Publishing {19 5) 37
Destnbution {13 B) 33
Licensing 33 11
{Loss) profit before tax (30 0) 81
Net assets (liabllities) Depreciation and
As at 30 June 2007 Assets Liabilwties Net assets arg:);t;fﬁ::g addlct?cﬁ-:?'l
Business segment £m Em Em Im £m
Publishing 2369 (50 3} 186 6 12 30
Distrtbution 302 {21 4} 88 08 19
Licensing 72 - 72 02 05
Total 274 3 (714 7) 2026 22 54
As at 30 June 2006
Business segment
Publishing 2430 (62 5) 1805 21 18
Distnbution 165 (13 0) 35 04 03
Licensing 28 - 28 01 01
Total 262 3 (75 5) 186 8 26 22
* Capital additions include additions to plant, property, equipment and intangible software
12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
3 Net finance charges £m £m
Flnance Income
Other interest recevable 12 07
Finance expense
Bank loans and overdrafts {05) (03
Net finance charges 07 04
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

4 Profit from operations 12 months to 12 manths to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
This has been arnved at after charging {(crediting) £m £m
Depreciation of property, plant equipment and amortisation of software® 16 18
Amortisation of brands and technology 110 106
Goodwill impairment 27 24
Share based compensation — cash settled equity incentive schemes (02) 20
Share based compensation — other 24 24
Foreign exchange (profit) loss 02 05
Operating lease expense
- plant and machinery 02 03
— property 31 23

*  The deprectation of plant, property and equipment and amortisation of software charged to the income statement differs 1o
the movement in depreciation and amortisation shown in note 10 and 12 by £0 9 milhon (2006 £0 8 million} of

depreciation incurred by internal development studios and treated as capitahsed development cost

During the year, the Group (including its overseas subsidianes) chtained the following services from the Group’s auditor and

associated firms

12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006
£m £m
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent Company and
consoldated annual accounts 05 04
Non-audit services
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and associated firms for other services
- sarvices relating to taxation compliance 01 -
- other services relating to corporate finance transactions 02 -
- all other services - 01
Total auditor remuneration 08 05

Fees for non-audit services supplied by the Group's auditors compnised tax compliance work of £63,000, share 1ssue due
diigence services of £116,000 and £51,000 for due dihgence services on acquisitions All such work 1s allocated under a
competitive tender process A descrniption of the work of the audit committee 1s set out in the corporate governance statement
which includes an explanation on how auditor objectivity and independence 15 safeguarded when non-audit work 1s provided by

the auditors
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

5 Staff costs and numbers 12 months to 12 menths to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006

The average monthly number of employees (inctuding executive directors) was Number Mumber
Sales, marketing and administration 222 272
Development 645 628
867 800

At 30 June 2007 the Group bad 228 employees In sales, marketing and administration and 743 in development

Aggregate remuneration (including directors) comprised £m Em
Wages and salaries 324 220
Social security costs 32 20
Share based compensation (see note 24) 24 24
Cash settled equity iIncentive schemes {see note 24) (04} 20
Cther pension ¢osts 12 06

388 290

Further disclosures relating to the remuneration of each individual director 1s included In the directors’ remuneration report of
which the information on pages 36 and 37 has been audited

Key management remuneration (Including directors) £m £m
Wages and salaries 33 26
Social security costs 03 Q3
Share based compensation (see note 24) 05 08
Gains on share options 13 04
Other pension costs 03 02

57 41

There are 22 employees (excluding directors) defined as being key management for 2007 (2006 16)

12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2008
6 Exceptionai charges £m £m

Exceptlonal revenue provision

Price protection charges (14 5) -

Exceptional admmistrative costs

Restructuring costs of integrating Eidos and SCi - (07

Settlement of a trade dispute (0 6) -

Exceptional development costs

Write down of capitalised development costs (13 B) (11}
(28 9) (18}

Exceptional price protection charges

The Group’s revenue 1s stated after deduction of price protection charges Price protection charges are incurred by the Group
when it mutually agrees with retailers to 1ssue credit notes for products previously sold to retailers but not yet sold to the end
customer The Group's experience over a long period 1s that price protection charges average approximately 10% of gross safes
to retalers In the year to 30 June 2007 the Group expenenced severe price pressure on platforms with declining popularity,
particularly the Sony PlayStation® 2 As a result the Group incurred excess price protection charges of £14 5 mullion, resulting
In a total charge of approximately 19% of gross sales to retallers The Group regards this excess as exceptionally high

Exceptlonal administrative costs

The Group incurred exceptional administrative costs of £0 6 million (2006 £0 7 million) This was sncurred In relation to the
settlement of a trade dispute (2008 this cost related to redundancy costs ansing from the integration of the Group's
publishing activities)

On 24 January 2007 the Company announced In 1ts trading update that, as in the 2006 financial year, our internal budget
planned a loss In the first haif of the year followed by a profit for the full year However the Company made a loss for the
financial year as a result of circumstances descnbed above and in the business review on pages 11 to 24
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otes to the consolidated accounts continued

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

6 Exceptional charges continued
Exceptlonal development costs
Exceptional development costs of £1 1 mullion in 2006 relate to an unprofitable development contract entered into by Eidos
prior to acquisition

The Group has estabhshed a provision of £13 8 million in 2007 against the carrying value of capitalised development costs
This reflects the shortfall in net realisable value of the Group's Investment in certain products and capitalised technologies In
setting the provision the Group has been particularly aware of the potential impact of slower than anticipated growth of the
PlayStation® 3 platform on sales forecasts

12 months to 12 months to
30 Juno 2007 30 June 2006
7 Tax on (loss) profit on ordinary activities £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 30% (02) (0 2}
Overseas taxation
Adjustment to the tax charge in respect of previous year - (2 6)
Deferred tax
Ongiation and reversal of temporary differences 21 82
Taxatlon credit 19 54

The difference between the deferred tax credit for 2006 of £8 2 million and the movement In the deferred tax assets and
hatihties in note 18 of £5 4 million relates to a £2 8 million movement on deferred tax liabilities which 1s a movement through
goodwill rather than through the income statement This amount pertains to intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of
Eidos plc

The reasens far the difference between the actuat tax charge for the vear and the standard rate aof corporation tax m the UK

applied to profits for the year are as follows
12 months to 12 months to
30 June 2007 30 June 2006

£m £m
(Loss) profit on ordinary activities before taxation (30 0) 81
(Loss) profit on ordinary activities at standard rate of UK Corpeoration tax rate (30%) (9 1) (24)
Effects of
- non taxable items 02 (38
— shortterm temporary differences (01)
— adjustment to the tax charge in respect of previous year (14) (C2)
- share of tax in associate undertakings - -
- losses not recognised for deferred tax purposes 64 -
— recognition of losses and other deferred tax assets not previously recognised 20 125
— overseas tax rates o1 Q7
Total tax credit for the year {19 54
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

8 (Loss) earnings per share

12 months to 30 June 2007

12 months to 30 June 2006

30 Juno 2007

Welghted Weighted
average number average number
Loss of shares Earnings of shares
Earnings per share has been calculated using the following £m m £m m
Basic (28 1) 797 135 729
Diluted (28 1) 797 135 76 4
2007 2006
Weighted average number of shares m m
Weighed average number of shares used In the calculation of basic and adjusted earnings per share 797 729
Dilutive potential ordinary shares
- Employee share cptions - 35
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted basic and
adjusted earnings per share 797 76 4
There 1s no potential dilution of the loss per ordinary share for 30 June 2007
The number of potentiaily dilutive options as at 30 June 2007 1s 5,412,274 (2006 6,667 ,924)
9 Non-GAAP measures of performance 12 months to 12 months to

30 June 2006

EBITDA before exceptional items and share based compensation £m £m
{Loss) profit from operations (31 4) 78
Deprectation, amortisation and impairment charged to income statement 153 14 8
Exceptional items on face of consolidated income statement (see note 6) 14 4 18
Share based compensation 22 44
EBITDA before exceptional items and share based compensation oS 288
Exceptional items charged to revenue 14 5 -
EBITDA before alt exceptional items and share based compensation 150 2388

million (2006 £28 8 million}

EBITDA before exceptional items and share based compensation 1s based on revenue of £144 O milion This revenue figure Is
stated after deduction of exceptionally high price protection charges of £14 5 million (2006 £mil} ansing from the hardware
transition Further detaills of this charge are set out in note 6 This charge 1s recorded as a deduction in arnving at revenue
Had this charge not been incurred then EBITDA before exceptional items and share based payment would have been £15 0
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

Equipment
vehicles and
Leasehold fixtures
improvements and fitungs Total
10 Property, plant and equipment £m £m im
Cost
1 July 2005 08 48 56
Additions 01 15 186
Disposals (0 1) {0 {10)
30 June 2008 08 54 62
Depreciation
1 July 2005 02 20 22
Charge for the year 03 14 17
Disposals (0 1) (O 8) (09
30 June 2006 o4 26 30
Net book value
30 June 2006 04 28 32
30 June 2005 06 28 34
Equipment
vehicles and
Leasehold fixtures
improvements and fittings Total
£m £m Iim
Cost
1 July 20086 a8 54 62
Additions 12 432 54
Disposals - — -
30 June 2007 2.0 96 116
Depreciation
1 July 2006 04 26 30
Charge for the year 02 19 21
Disposals - - -
30 June 2007 06 45 51
Net book value
30 June 2007 14 51 65
30 June 2006 04 28 32

The net book value of tangible fixed assets at 30 June 2007 includes the amount of £ml (30 June 2006 £Q 2 million) 1n
respect of assets held under finance ieases

The depreciation charge for the year in respect of such assets was £0 2 miilion {12 months ended 30 June 2006
£0 3 milhon)
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 june 2007

11 Goodwill £m
Cost

1 July 2005 77
Additions

— Ansing on acquisition of Eidos 20
30 June 2006 a7
Additions

— Morpheme and Proein o7
30 June 2007 104
Provisions

1 July 2005 26
Impasrment 24
30 lune 2006 50
Imparrment 27
30 lune 2007 77

Net book value

30 June 2007 27
30 June 2008 a7
30 June 2005 51

The impairment figure 1n 2006 refates to the full write down of £2 4 milhon of goodwill asseciated to the Actuahize Group This group
of companies has now been made dormant and 15 no longer expected o deliver any future economic benefits 1o the Group

The impairment figure in 2007 relates te the full wnite down of £2 7 million of goodwill associated to the Pivotal acquisition
Goodwill has been impaired down to nil value in use, because the directors feel that the brands acquired in 2004 no fonger
have any future sigmificant economic value, after taking into account projected net revenue streams discounted at the
Company's cost of capital

Goodwill calculations

Acquisition of Eidos (2006)

Goodwill ansing in the 2006 financial year represents the acquisition of the remaining 9 98% of Exdos from its previous
shareholders through the issue of shares in SCi Entertainment Group Ple In calculating the goodwill, the faw value of the net
assets of Eidos plc have been assessed The provistonal assessment Is that no adjustments from book value are required The
calculation of goodwill 1s summarnsed in the table below

Net assets acquired at book and fair value Em
Plant, property and equipment 04
Intangible assets 14 4
Capitalised development costs 02
Investments in associates 02
Inventory 02
Trade and other receivables 39
Finance leases o
Deferred tax habilities (7 6)
Trade and other payables {(31)
Provisions (0 2)
Net assets acquired (non cash) 83
Net cash acquired omn
Net assets 76
Fair value of the consideration 117
Goodwill created on acquisition of minority interest 41
Release of contingent constderation (2 1)
Goodwill created during the year 20
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

11 Goodwill continued

Acquisition of Proein SL (2007)

Goodwll ansing sn the 2007 financial year represents the acquisition of the remaimming 25% of Proemn SL from its previous
shareholders in July 2006 for €3 million cash, which was pard in the year In calculating the goodwill, the fair value of the net
assets of Proein SL has been assessed The prowisional assessment ts that no adjustments from book value are required The
calculation of goodwill 1s summarnsed In the table below

Net assets acquired at book and falr value £m
Plant, property and equipment 01
intangible assets -
Inventory 05
Trade and other recevables 11
Trade and other payables (1 0)
Net assets acquired (non cash) 07
Net cash acquired 0¢g
Net assets 16
Fair value of the consideration 21
Goodwilf created on acquisition of minority interest 05

Acquisition of Morpheme Studios (2007}

Goodwill ansing 1n the 2007 financial year represents the acquisition of the trade and assets of Morpheme Studios in March
2007 for £0 4 million cash In calculating the goodwili, the fair value of the net assets of Morpheme has been assessed The
provisional assessment 15 that no adpustments from book value are required The caiculation of goodwill 1s summansed in the
table below

Net assets acquired at book and fair value £m
Intangible assets 02
Net assets 02
Fair value of the consideration 04
Goodwill created on acquisition 02

Acquisition of the Rockpool Group (2007)

No goodwill has ansen from the acquisittion of the Rockpool group of compantes «n February 2007 for £6 7 mullion in shares
and cash In calculating the goodwill, the fairr value of the net assets of Rockpool has been assessed The provisional
assessment I1s that no adjustments from book value are required The calculation of goodwill 1s summarised in the table below

Net assets acquired at book and falr value £m
Plant, property and equipment -
Intangible assets 63
Trade and other recewables 05
Trade and other payables (02)
Net assets acquired (non cash) 66
Net cash acquired (0 1)
Net assets 65
Fair value of the consideration 63
Acquisition costs 02

Goodwill created on acquisition -

The consideration comprised £0 7 million of cash and £0 5 million of shares in SCi Entertainment Group Pl 1ssued on date
of purchase and £5 1 milhon of contingent consideration, payable over the next three years, 58% in cash and 42% in shares In
SCi Entertainment Group Ple
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for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

11 Goodwill continued

Acquisition of Bluefish Media GmbH (2007)

No goodwill has ansen from the acquesition of Bluefish Medra GmbH from its previous shareholders on 1 January 2007 for
€3 mulhon, payable in cash and shares In calculating the goodwill, the fair value of the net assets of Bluefish has heen
assessed The provisional assessment Is that no adjustments from book vatue are required The calculation of goodwill 1s
summarised in the table below

Net assets acquired at book and fair value £m
Intangble assets 19
Trade and other recevables 02
Trade and other payables {0 2)
Net assets acquired (non cash) 19
Net cash acquired -
Net assets 19
Fair value of the consideraticn 19

Goodwill created on acquisition -

The consideration compnsed £0 8 milhon cash payable on purchase and then £1 1 milhion payable over the next three years,
43% n cash and 57% in shares in SCi Entertainment Group Ple

Total

Brands Technelogy Software intangible assets
12 Other intangible assets £m £m £m £m
Cost
1 July 2005 892 a7 7 09 1178
Additions - - 06 a6
30 June 2006 69 2 477 15 118 4
Disposals - - - -
Additions - acquired with subsidiary undertakings - 82 02 84
30 June 2007 692 5859 17 126 8
Amartisatlon
1 July 2005 05 07 - 12
Charge for the year 46 60 09 115
30 June 2006 51 67 09 127
Charge for the year 46 64 04 114
30 June 2007 97 131 13 241
Net book value
30 June 2007 595 42 8 04 1027
30 June 2006 641 410 06 1057
30 June 2005 68 7 470 09 116 6

Engines and
technalogy Games Total
13 Capitalised development costs £m Im £m
30 June 2005 - 168 168
Capitalised in the year 27 547 57 4
Charged In the year - (28 1) (28 1)
30 June 2006 27 43 4 46 1
Capitalised In the year 227 45 8 68 5
Charged in the year - (32 8) {32 8)
30 June 2007 25.4 56 4 818
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14 Investments in associates and subsldiary undertakings

The Group had the following investments (n associated undertakings £m
Cost

30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006 03
Addition i the year o1
30 June 2007 04

Share of retalned profits

30 June 2005 04
{Loss) for the year (0 1)
Moved to assets held for resale (note 17} (02)
30 June 2006 01
Profit for the year 01
30 lune 2007 Q2

Net book value

30 June 2007 06
30 June 2006 04
30 June 2005 o7

The parent Company had snvestments in the following principal undertakings, each of which has an accounting reference date

of 30 June apart from Rocksteady Studios Ltd which has an accounting reference date of 30 September
Counizy of
regisiration

Pnncipal activity Holding %  Class and aperation

Subsidiary undertakings

Ewdos Ltd Holding company 100* Ordinary England
Eidos Interactive Ltd Developer and publisher of interactive entertainment software 100  Ordinary England
Pwotal Games Ltd Developer of interactive entertainment software 100* Ordinary England
tidos Inc Distributor of interactive entertainment software 100  Ordinary usa
Eidos Sarl Distributor of interactive entertainment software 100 Ordinary France
Eidos GmbH Distributor of interactive entertainment software 100 Orcinary Germany
Proemn SL Distnbutor of interactive entertainment software 100 Common shares Spamn
Crystal Dynamics Inc Developer of interactive entertainment software 100 Ordinary USA

lo interactive AS Developer of interactive entertainment software 100 Ordinary Denmark
Eidos Hungary Kft Developer of interactive entertainment software 100 Ordinary Hungary
Eidos Studios,

Sweden AB Developer of interactive entertainment software 100  Ordinary Sweden
Rockpool Group of

companies (COmprsing

Rockpool Games Ltd,

Ironstone Partners Ltd

and Sogoplay Ltd} Developer of interactive entertainment software 100 Ovdinary Engiand
Bluefish Media GmbH Online distnbutor of interactive entertainment software 100 Ordhnary Germany
Assoclate undertakings

Rocksteady Studios Ltd  Developer of interactive entertainment software 251 Ordinary England
lo Interactive

Hungary Kftt Dormant company 51  Ordinary Hungary

* Held directly by the parent Company
t This has not been treated as a subsidiary as the Group does not have control over the undertaking
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30 June 2007 30 June 2008
15 Inventory £m £m
Finished goods 72 52

Cost of sales includes £48 7 milon (2006 £53 8 milhan) which relates to manufactunng costs and cost of goods scrapped

30 June 2007

30 June 2006

16 Trade and other receivables £m £m
Trade debtors 318 525
Prepayments and accrued income 38 18
Cther debtors 57 29
Amount due from associated undertaking - 03

41 3 57 5

The amount due from associated undertaking represented a loan to Rocksteady Studios Lid

17 Assets classified as held for resale

in July 20086, for £0 8 million, realising a profit to the Group of £0 6 million

18 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

various tax jurisdictions

The asset held for sale at 30 June 2006 is the 26 7% investment in Pyro Studios SL This was sold to its majonity shareholder

At 30 June 2007 the Group had substantial tax losses carned forward subject to the agreement of the tax authorities in

Movement Movement

30 tune 2005 In the pernod 30 June 2006 In the penod 30 June 2007
Movement in deferred tax balance £m £m £m £m £m
Tax losses 131 12 14 3 (10} 133
Brands and technology (318) 05 (31 3} 36 (27 7)
Short-term temporary differences - 37 37 (2 4) 13
Recognised deferred tax assets (llabilities) (18 7) 54 (13 3) 02 {13 1}
Presented as
Deferred tax asset 03 18 21 {(20) 01
Deferred tax habiity (19 O} 36 (15 4) 22 (13' 2)
Total {18 7) 54 {13 3) 02 {131)
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax balance
Tax losses 87 (2 3) 64 18 82
Other short-term temporary differences 09 (09 - 80 80
Unrecognised deferred tax assets (liabllities) 96 (32) 64 98 16 2

30 tune 2007

30 June 2006

19 Trade and other payables £m £m
Trade creditors 122 198
Royalty creditors 14 2 69
Other creditors 36 31
Obligations under finance leases (see note 26} - 02

300 298

30 unec 2007

30 June 2006

20 Tax llabilities £m £m
Taxatron and social secunty 29 26
Corporation tax 12 a7
41 73
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
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Returns provision

21 Current provisions £m
30 June 2006 150
Reclassified to trade debtors (5 3)
Charged to the income statement n the year i88
Charged as exceptional 145
Utilised dunng the year (34 9)
30 June 2007 81

As at 30 June 2006 and 2007

Returns provision

As at 30 June 2007 a provision against the return of goods sold and future pnee protection of £8 1 milhien {2006

£15 0 million) related to sales made during the year and hence has been charged to the income statement dunng this period
This provision also includes rebates due to retailers which are paid quarterly This provision will be released as the games are
returned or price protected, or the quarterly rebate amount paid, and 15 expected to be fully used or released in the 2008
financial year

22 Non current provisions

Contingent consideration

Consideration as at 30 June 2007 1s payable in relation to the purchase of Rockpool Games Ltd (and associated companies)
and Bluefish Media GmbH, which 1s deemed payable over the next 1-3 years and has been accrued for as the directors believe
that 1t 1s probahle that these amounts will be payable in the future The £6 2 million contingent consideration, ansing durnng
the year, has been charged to goodwill

23 Called-up share capital 30 June 202; 30 June zogrg
Authorised
97,000,000 (2006 97,000,000) ordinary shares of 5p each 49 49
Allotted, called-up and fully-paid
86,470,185 ordinary shares of 5p each (2006 76,162,376 ordinary shares of 5p each) 43 38
2007 2006

Number of shares 2007 Number of shares 2006
The movement in share capital was as follows m £m m £m
At beginning of the year 76.2 3.8 69 4 35
Share subscnpuon by Warner Bros 89 04 35 02
Issue of shares to acquire Eidos - - 30 01
Issue of shares to acquire Rockpool 01 - - -
Issue of new shares under SCi 1996 Share Option Plan 123 01 03 -
At end of the year B6 5 43 76 2 38

Durnng the year 8,860,987 shares were 1ssued to Warner Bros Entertainment under a share subscription agreement, 113,672
shares were 1ssued in relation to the purchase of the Rockpool Group and 1,333,150 shares were 1ssued under the SCi 1996
Share Option Plan The market price on 15 December 2006, the date on which the terms of the share subscription by Warner

Bros Entertainment were agreed, was 500p per share
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

24 Share based compensation
5Ci 1996 Share Option Plan
The Company operates an unapproved share option plan At 30 June 2007, options were outstanding over 5,522,274 shares,
including options held by directars The options are exercisable If certain performance critena are met, as set by the
remuneration committee, which relate to share price performance compared with the FTSE Media Index
Number Number
of shares ol shares
aver which over which
options options
Scheme granted Granted in Exercised In Lapsed in granted Of which Exercise price
number 30 June 2006 the penod the period the penod 30 June 2007 exercisable {pence) Exercise period
1 175,000 - {175,000) - - - 390 11 December 2001 to
11 December 2005*
2 41,000 - (41,000) - - - 565 8 March 2002 to
8 March 2006*
4 17,500 - - - 17,500 17,500 47 5 18 July 2004 to 18 July 2008
5 240,000 - - - 240,000 240,000 810 20 August 2004 to
20 August 2008
6 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000 850 1 October 2004 to
1 October 2008
7 19,000 - (19,000 - - - 57 0 13 September 2005 to
13 September 2009
8 312,000 - (62,000} - 250,000 250,000 720 16 June 2006 to
16 June 2010
9 473,500 - (4862,350) - 11,150 11,150 1035 23 October 2006 to
23 October 2010
10 3,800 - (3.8B00) - - - 117 0 25 March 2007 to
25 March 2011
11 185,174 - (55,000) (1.500) 128674 128,674 1255 34 March 2007 to
31 March 2011
12 720,600 - - (1,000) 719,600 - 1005 27 August 2007 to
27 August 2011
13 86,000 - - (8,000) 78,000 - 2300 17 December 2007 to
17 December 2011
14 8,000 - - - 8,000 - 2735 2 February 2008 to
2 February 2012
15 8.000 - - - 8,000 - 3615 28 Apnl 2008 to
28 Apnl 2012
18 4,183,350 - - {361,000} 3,802,350 - 3335 30 June 2008 to
30 June 2012
17 10,000 - - - 10,000 - 404 0 1 August 2008 to
1 August 2012
18 65,000 - - - 65,000 - 5150 11 October 2008 to
11 October 2012
19 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 484 0 17 October 2008 to
17 October 2012
20 20,000 - - - 20,000 - 5400 1 November 2008 to
1 November 2012
21 25,000 - - - 25,000 - 5600 11 January 2009 to
11 January 2013
27 - 44 000 - - 44,000 - 4750 17 July 2009 to 17 July 2013
6,667,924 44,000 (81B,150) (371,500) 5,522,274 667,324
* Dunng the previous period the remuneration committee amended the rules of the SCi 1896 Share Option Plan to extend the
exercise penod of options granted on 11 December 1998 and 8 March 1999 where, immediately prior to the expiry of the
exercise penod, the Company was in a close period or otherwise subject to a prohibition on share dealing by directors In
such circumstances the exercise penod was extended until one month following the end of such penod
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24 Share based compensation continued

Peel Hunt Options

Pursuant to an agreement dated 18 March 2005 in respect of Its services provided as financial adviser, sponsor and broker,
SCi granted to KBC Peel Hunt, options to subscribe for 500,000 new SCi Shares at 300p per share (scheme number 22) The
options were exercisable, in whole or in part, at any time up to 16 November 2006 and were exercised on 2 November 2006

Number Number
of shares of shares
over which over which
options ophons
Scheme granted Granted in Exercised In Lapsed in granted Of which Exercise price
number 30 June 2006 the penod the penod the penod 30 June 2007 exgroisable (pence)  Exereise peried
22 500,000 —  (500,000) - - - 3000 Upto 16 November 2006

Phantom schemes

In addition 1o the SCi| 1996 Share Option Plan the Group operates a cash settled equity incentive plan for certain employees,
principally in the United States Cash awards under this scheme are based an movements in the Group's share pnce No
directors are included in this scheme

Number Numer
of shares of shares
over which over which
options options
Scheme granted Granted i Exercised \n Lapsed in granted Of which Exercise price
number 30 June 2006 the penod the period the period 30 June 2007 exercisable . (pence} Exercise pericd
23 623,043 - (97,457) (40,778) 484,808 - 3335 30 June 2008 to
30 June 2011
24 10,000 - - - 10,000 - 3335 11 October 2008 to
11 October 2011
25 105,834 - {4,166) (18,334 83,334 - 466 0 11 October 2008 to
11 October 2011
26 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 5110 16 January 2009 to
16 January 2012
28 - 30,000 - - 30,000 - 4480 1 August 2009 to
1 August 2013
29 - 48,333 - (8,666) 39,667 - 4810 1 October 2008 to
1 October 2011
30 - 45833 - (8,666) 37.167 - 481 0 1 October 2009 to
1 Oclober 2011
31 - 45833 - (8,666) 37,167 - 4810 1 October 2010 to
1 October 2011
32 - 1,000 - - 1,000 1,000 5070 6 December 2006 to
6 December 2010
33 - 25,000 - - 25,000 - 4600 18 May 2009 to
18 May 2013
34 - 25824 - - 25824 - 4660 31 March 2008 to
31 March 2012
35 - 25,824 - - 25,824 - 466 0 31 March 2009 to
31 March 2012
36 - 25,824 - - 25,824 - 466 0 31 March 2010 to

31 March 2012

813,877 273,471 (101,623} (85,110} 900,615 1,000

The market price of the ordinary shares at 6 July 2007 was 518 5p and the range during the year was 419p to 525p All share
options granted duning the year were 1ssued at market value

The weighted average share price of shares exercised in the year was 495p

The weighted average remaining contractual ife of share options outstanding as at 30 June 2007 1s 4 5 years (30 June
2006 5 3 years)
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24 Share based compensation continued
Details of the fair vatue of share options granted in the year under the schemes operated by the Group are as follows

Estimated
penod
Share price to exarcise Risk free
Scheme Option pricing  at grant date  Exercise price of options Expected interast
number Scheme name model used {pence} {pence) {years) volatihty rate
27 1996 Share Option Plan 17/07/06  Binomial 465 475 30 40% 571%
28 Equity Incentive Plan 1/08/06 Binomial 442 448 30 40% 571%
29 Equity Incentive Plan 1/10/06 Binomuat 482 481 10 40% 571%
30 Equity Incentive Plan 1/10/06 Binpmeal 482 481 20 40% 571%
31 Equity Incentive Plan 1/10/06 Binomial 482 481 30 40% 571%
32 Equity Incentive Plan 6/12/06 Binomial 5086 507 30 A0% 571%
33 Equity Incentrve Plan 18/05/07 Binomial 500 460 30 a40% 571%
34 Equity Incentive Plan 31/03/07 Binomial 470 468 10 40% 571%
35 Equity Incentive Plan 31/03/07 Bingrmial 470 468 20 40% 571%
36 Equity Incentive Plan 31/03/07 Binomial 470 468 30 40% 571%
Volatity based on share price data over 3 years
2007 2006
Charge recorded in the financial statements of the Group s £m E£m
Phantom schemes (0.2)* 20
Share based payment schemes 24 24
2.2 44

* £0 4 milhon has been credited to the balance sheet in respect of phantom schemes Of this a credit of £0 2 milhon related
to phantom options awarded to staff in internal development studios and their share based compensation expense has
been capitalised in the costs of the games they have worked upon
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25 Reserves and changes in equity
SCi Entertainment Group Plc has the following reserves

Foreign Share Employee
currency based benefit
Share Share Merger Capntal translation comp-  trust share Retained
capital premium reserve reserve feserve ansation reserve profit Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1 July 2005 35 57 4 69 9 63 - 03 (0 9) 15 1380
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 13 4 134
Charged to equity
New shares i1ssued 02 17 4 - - - - - - 176
Share 1ssue costs - 02 - - - - - - (0 2)
Issue of shares for remaining
10% of Eidos o1 - 11 4 - - - - - 115
Share based compensation - - - - - 44 - — 44
Foreign exchange - - - - 05 - — - 05
Total charged to equity 03 17 2 114 - 05 44 - - 338
Total income and
expense for the year 03 172 114 - 05 44 - 13 4 47 2
: 30 June 2006 38 746 813 63 05 47 (0 9) 14 9 185 2
\ Loss for the year - - - - - - - (28 1) {28 1)
Charged to equity
‘ New shares 1ssued 0% 46 6 - - - - - - 47 1
| Share 1ssue costs - (0 9} ~ - - - - — {0 9)
Share based compensation - - - - - 24 - - 24
Share based compensation
moved to iabiities* - - - - - (2 0} - - (20)
Foreign exchange - - - - (11} - - - (11)
Total charged to equity 05 457 - - (11) 04 - - 455
Total income and
expense for the year 05 457 - - (11) 04 - {28 1) 17 4
30 June 2007 43 1203 813 63 (0 6) 51 (09) {13 2) 2026
*Transfer to labilites of amounts in respect of cash settled overseas staff equity schemes previously classified within
reserves
Share premium Amount subscnbed for share capital in excess of nominal value
Merger reserve In the @ months to 30 June 2005 the Company exercised the exemption provided

under Section 131 of the Campames Act 1985 not to recogmse the premium on the
issue of shares 1ssued in order to acquire at least 90% of Eidos plec As a result the
associated £69 4 million of fair value of shares 1ssued 1n excess of the nominal value
has been transferred to the merger reserve
In 2006, the remaining 9 96% was purchased and the £11 4 million of fair value of the
shares in excess of the nominal value was also charged to the merger reserve

Capital reserve During the year ended 30 September 2004, the Company completed a capital
reduction to restructure the Group's reserves Accordingly the balance of the share
premium account of £28 3 million at 30 September 2003 has been eliminated with
£6 3 milhon being transferred to a capital reserve and the balance credited against
accumulated losses in the retained earnings reserve

Ferergn currency translation reserve Reserve includes the movement on overseas foreign currency retained profits reserves
and revaluation of intercompany provisions and investments

Share based compensation reserve Reserve contains the value of share based compensation awards, which are charged to
the iIncome statement over the life of the awards, but which have no cash impact

Employee benefit trust share reserve  Reserve containing shares held by an Employee Benefit Trust for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of awards under the Company’s share option plan

Retamned profits Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated income statement
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26 Leases
Finance leases Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
2007 2007 2007
Future lease payments are due as follows £m £m £m {net)
Not later than one year - - -
Total - - -
Minimum lgase
payments Interest Present value
2006 2006 2006
£m £m £m (net)
Not later than one year 02 - 02
Total 02 - 02
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as 2007 2006
Current habilites - 02
Non-current habilities R - -
Total - 02
Operating leases
The total future mimimum rentals payable under operating leases in respect of the total lives of the leases are
2007 2007 2006 2006
Land and buildings Other Land and buildings Cther
Within one year 23 02 27 02
Within two to five years 37 02 60 02
After five years 21 - 78 -
Total 81 0.4 165 04
Leases of land and buldings are typically subject to rent reviews at speciiied intervals and provide for the lessee to pay all
insurance, maintenance and repaw costs Other operating leases relate to cars and office equipment
SCi Entertainment Group Plc Annual Report & Accounts 2007 67




Notes to the consolidated accounts continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

27 Financial commitments
There were no capital comrmitments contracted at the balance sheet date

28. Financlal instruments - risk management and numerical Information

The Group 1s exposed through its operations to one or more of the following financial risks
> Faw value or cash flow interest rate nsk

> Liquidity nsk

> Credit nsk

> Foreign currency risk

The polcy to address each of the above nisks 1s descnbed In more deta) below

Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk

Surplus cash throughout the Group 1s put on short-term deposit where appropriate, at floating rates The Board constantly
monitors the financsal markets and the Group's future borrowing requirements to ensure that this policy 1s exercised in the
Group's best interests

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk 1 managed centrally on a Group basis Bank facilities are agreed at appropriate levels having regard to the
Group's forecast operating cash flows and future capital expenditure

Credit risk
The Group faces credit nsk due to the credit it extends to retallers Credit hmits are agreed and closely monitored on a local
level and credit insurance I1s held against some bad debts

Foreign currency risk
The Group earns income and incurs expenditure throughout the world in a vanety of currencies Foreign currency risk 1s
managed by a variety of methods including forward contracts and swap arrangements

The Company has commercial hedges but does not hedge account Further detaiis of financial instruments, iguidity nsk, credit
nsk and foreign currency risk can be found on page 23 and 24 of the operating and financial review
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28 Financial instruments — risk management and numerlcal informatlon continued
Numerical information

Financlal assets
30 June 2007 30 June 2006

The financial assets of the Group comprsed £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
— Sterling 156 112
— US dollar 66 136
- Euro 85 118
— Other 07 06
314 372
Trade and other recewvables 413 575
Current financial assets 727 947
Total financlal assets 727 947

Cash and cash equivalents include balances held on which interest 1s recewed at floating rates n the overnight money market
Rates of interest earned on cash balances vaned between 0 and 6 2% (2006 O to 5 1%)

Financial labititles

30 June 2007 30 June 2006
The financial habilities of the Group comprised £m £m
Income tax habilities 41 73
Trade and other payables 300 298
Accruals and deferred income 101 80
Provisions 81 150
Current financial liabilities 523 601

Finance lease debt - -
Long-term financiat liabilities - -
Total financial liabilities 523 601

All financial habilities are interest free

in the opinion of the directors, there 1s no difference between the book value and the fair value of any of the above assets or
liabiities

Borrowling facilitles and maturity of financial liabilitles
At 30 June 2007, the Group had an agreed overdraft facility of £20 million The facility bears interest at 1% over UK base rate

Forelgn currency risk disclosures

The Group receives significant revenues in either euros or US doliars The Group's pelicy 1s to eliminate significant currency
exposures through naturat hedges by transacting for sales and purchases in the same currency and by forward contracts At 30
June 2006 and 2007 the Group had no hedging transactions
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29 Related party transaction

a) Transactions with assoclated undertakings

Dunng the year the Group paid £2 9 million to its associated undertakings as royalties and advances on games being
developed for the Group (2006 £6 9 million)

In the year to 30 June 2007 the Group pard £2 9 million to Rocksteady Studios Ltd, an associated undertaking in which the
Group has an interest of 25 1%, as advances for the development of games for the Group (2006 £3 O milign) At 30 June
2007, the Group was owed £nil milhon by Rocksteady Studios Ltd (see note 16) (2006 £0 3 milhon)}

In the year to 30 June 2008, the Group paid £3 9 miilion to the joint venture Pyro Studios SL as royalties and advances for
the development of games for the Group At 30 June 2006, the Group was owed £0 1 milhon by Pyro Studios SL In July 20086,
the Group sold 1ts share in Pyro Studios SL

b) Directors and key management remuneration
Details of amounts paid to directors and key management 1S set out in note 5 and In the directors’ remuneration report on
page 36

30 Contingent assets and liabllities

The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in a2 number of legal proceedings incidental to 1ts operations Other than
already provided for in the financial statements, the Company does not expect the outcome of such proceedings, either
indwidually or tn aggregate, to have a matenal effect upon the resutts of the Company’s operations or 1ts financial posiion
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Company balance sheet under UK GAAP

at 30 June 2007

30 June 2006

30 June 2007 Restated
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments " 920 96
920 96
Current assets
Debtors i 155 65 8
Cash at bank and in hand 17,1 81
326 719
Creditors amounts falling due within one year v {14) (07}
Net current assets 312 712
Total assets less current liabllities 123 2 808
Net assets 123.2 808
Capital and reserves .
Called-up equity share capital v 43 38
Share premium account % 1203 746
Capital reserve v 63 63
Share hased compensation v 51 47
Profit and loss account v {12 8) (8 6)
Shareholders' funds v 1232 808

The notes on pages 72 to 75 form part of the Company UK GAAP financiat statements,

These financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 7 December 2007 and signed
on its behalf by

7

Phil Rogers
Director
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Notes to the UK GAAP financial statements

for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

1 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies of the Company are
summansed below

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards

As prowvided by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985,
no profit and loss account 1s presented in respect of
SCi Entertainment Group Plc

Accounting periods

The accounting reference date of the Company 1s 30 June
The current years results are for the penod to 6 July 2007
The comparative years results are for the year to 30 June
2006

Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provisions
for any impairment

Investments are stated at cost plus direct acquisition
costs Where consideration 1s represented by new share
1ssues, under Sectuion 131 of the Companies Act 1985, the
Company has elected to show the associated cost of
investment as being the nominal value of the shares 1ssued

Taxation
Corporation tax payable 1s provided on taxable profits at
prevailing rates

ii} Investments
The Company has the following investments

Long-term incentive plan for executive directors

Future payments under the Company's long-term incentive
plan are estimated and charged to the profit and loss
account over the penod to which they relate

Penslons

For defined contribution schemes, the amount charged to the
profit and loss account in respect of pension costs 1s the
contributions payable in the year Differences between
contnbutrons payabie in the year and contributions actually
paid are shown as either aceruals or prepayments in the
balance sheet

Share based employee remuneration

Stock option plans enable the employees of the Company
and Its subsidianies to participate in the success of the
Company by acquinng shares The Company recognises a
charge to the profit and loss account In respect of share
options based on the fair value of the awarded options at the
date of grant This expense is recognised over the relevant
vesting perods, adjusted to reflect the actual and expected
levels of vesting The fair value of the options 1s assessed
using a binomial model that takes account If the terms and
conditions of the options as defined when they are awarded
The charge for share options 1ssued in relation to subsidiary
employees are dealt with 1n the accounts of those
companies, under their local accounting rules

Financial instruments
Financ:al assets and habihties are inittally measured at fair
value

30 June 2007 30 June 2006

All amounts are shown at cost £m £m

Subsidiary undertakings

— shares 920 61

- lpans - 35
920 26

At 30 June 2007, the principal undertakings of SCi Entertainment Group Plc are detailed in note 14 of the IFRS financial

statements

1) Debtors ) 30 June 203: 30 June 20££

Amounts due from substidiary undertakings 153 658

Cther debtors 02 —
155 65 8

30 June 2007 30 June 2006

v) Credrtors amounts falling due within one year £m Em
Trade creditors 06 02
Accruals and deferred income 08 05

14 07
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Notes to the UK GAAP financial statements continued
for the 12 months tc 30 June 2007

30 Junc 2007

30 June 2005

v) Share capital and reserves £m £m
Authorlsed
97,000,000 (2006 97,000,000) ordinary shares of 5p each 49 49
Allotted, called-up and fully-pald
86,470,185 ordinary shares of 5p (2006 76,162,376 ordinary shares of 5p each) 43 38
2007 2006
Number of shares 2007 Number of shares 2008
The movement in share capital was as follows m £m m £m
At beginning of the year 76 2 38 694 35
Share subscription by Warner Bros 8.9 04 35 02z
Issue of shares to acquire Eidos - - 30 01
Issue of shares to acquire Rockpoo! o1 - - -
Issue of new shares under SC1 1996 Share Qpuon Plan 13 01 03 -
At end of the year 865 43 76 2 38
Details of shares 1ssued in the year are given in note 23 of the consolidated financial statements
Share prermum Share based Profit and
account Capital reserve compensation ioss account
£m £m £m £m
1 July 2006 746 63 a7 (8 8)
(Loss) for the period - - - (4 2)
Share based compensation — - 04 -
New shares 1ssued 46 6 - - -
Share 1ssue costs (0 9) - - -
30 June 2007 1203 6.3 51 (12 8)

30 June 2007

30 June 2008

Reconclliatlon of movement in shareholders funds im £m
Opening shareholders funds 808 63 1
(Loss) for the financial pernod (4 2) 4 2)
Share based compensation 04 44
New shares 1ssued 46 2 175
Closing shareholders funds 1232 808
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Notes to the UK GAAP financial statements continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

vi} Share based compensation

SCi 1996 Share Option Plan

The Company operates an unapproved share option plan At 30 June 2007, options were outstanding over 2,359,174 shares,
including options held by directors The options are exercisable If certain performance critena are met, as set by the
remuneration committee, which relate to share price performance compared with the FTSE Media Index

Number Number
of shares of shares
over which over which
aptions options
Scheme granted Granted in Exercised in Lapsed in granted Of which  Exercise price
mumber 30 June 2006 the penod the pencd the penod 30 June 2007 exercisable {pence)  Exercise pencd
1 175,000 - (175,000) - - - 390 11 December 2001 to
11 December 2005*
2 41,000 - (41,000) - - - 565 8 March 2002 to
8 March 2006*
4 17,500 - - - 17,500 17,500 47 5 18 July 2004 to 18 July 2008
5 240,000 - - - 240,000 240,000 810 20 August 2004 to
20 August 2008
6 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000 850 1 October 2004 to
1 October 2008
7 1,000 - (1,000} - - - 57 0 13 September 2005 to
13 September 2009
8 250,000 - - - 250,000 250,000 720 16 June 20086 to
16 June 2010
11 128,674 - - - 128,674 128,674 1255 31 March 2007 to
31 March 2011
12 505,000 - - - 505,000 - 1005 27 August 2007 to
27 August 2011
13 14,000 - - - 14,000 - 2300 17 December 2007 to
17 December 2011
16 1,118,000 - - (29,000) 1,089 000 - 3335 30 June 2008 to
30 June 2012
19 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 4840 17 October 2008 to
17 October 2012
20 20,000 - - - 20,000 - 5400 1 November 2008 to
1 November 2012
2,605,174 - {217,000) {29,000) 2,359,174 656,174

* During the previous perniod the remuneration commitiee amended the rules of the SCi 19986 Share Option Plan to extend the
exercise penod of options granted on 11 December 1998 and 8 March 1999 where, immediately prior to the expiry of the
exercise penod, the Company was In a close period or atherwise subject to a prohibition on share dealing by directors In
such circumstances the exercise penod was extended until one month following the end of such penod

Phantom schemes
In addition to the SCi 1996 Share Option Plan the Group operates a cash settled equity incentive plan for certain employees
Cash awards under this scheme are based on movements i the Group’s share price No directors are included in this scheme

Number Number
of shares of shares
aver which over which
options options
Scheme granted Granted in Exercised In Lapsed in granted Of which Exercise price
number 30 June 2006 the period the penod the penod 30 June 2007 exercisable (pence}  Exercise penod
28 - 30,000 - - 30,000 - 448 0 1 August 2009 to

1 August 2013

The market price of the ordinary shares at 6 July 2007 was 518 5p and the range dunng the year was 419p to 525p All share
options granted during the year were 15sued at market value

The weighted average share price of shares exercised in the year was 474p

The weighted average remaining contractuat life of share options outstanding as at 30 June 2007 1s 4 1 vears

Details of the fair value of share options granted in the year under the schemes operated by the Group are as shown in
note 24 of the consolidated statements

Volaulity based on share pnce data over 3 years
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Notes to the UK GAAP financial statements continued
for the 12 months to 30 June 2007

vi} Share based compensation continued
Share based compensation

2007 2008
(Credit) charge recorded In the financial statements of the parent Company 1s £m £m
Phantom schemes (2.1} 20
Share based payment schemes (12) 24
{33) 44

vil} Loss attributable to SCI Entertainment Group Plc

vlil} Employees costs and numbers

The average number of people employed by the Company (including directors) during the year was as follows

The credit in 2007 represents the recharge of the share based compensation relating to employees of subsidiary companies

The loss for the 12 months to 30 June 2007 dealt with In the financial statements of the parent Company, SCi Entertainment
Group Plc, was £4 2 million (12 months to 30 June 2006 loss of £4 2 million)

2007 2006

Number Number

Management and administration 23 23
Staff costs (including directors) comprise £m £m
Wages and salanes 28 13
Defined pension costs 02 02
Employers natienal insurance and similar taxes 05 01
Total 35 16

remuneration

ix) Related party transactions

consolidated financial statements

Please refer to note 5 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements on page 53 for further details of the directors

The Company has exercised the exemption provided under FRS8 in respect of subsidiartes which have been consolidated In the
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Shareholder information

Shareholder analysis

As at 7 December 2007, the number of registered shareholders was 4,525 and the number of ordinary shares n issue was

86,875,247

shareholders total shareholders

Number of Percentage of Number of
shares (milhon)

Percentage of
total shares

Range of holdings

1to 1,500 4,051 895 08 10
1,501 to 5,000 195 43 05 06
5,001 to 10,000 55 12 04 05
10,001 to 50,000 112 25 27 31
50,001 to 100,000 29 08 19 22
100,001 to 250,000 35 08 55 64
250,001 to 500,000 15 03 53 61
500,001 to 1,000,000 13 03 93 107
1,000,000 to highest 20 04 60 2 69 3
Total 4,525 100.0 86 8 1000
Held by

Individuals 3,850 851 65 75
Institutions and companies 675 149 8O3 925
Total 4,525 1000 868 1000
Shareholder enquiries ShareGIFT

Enquines concerning sharehoidings, change of address or
other particulars, should be directed in the first instance to
the Company's registrars, Capita Registrars, Nerthern House,
Woodsome Park, Fenay Bridge, Huddersfield, West Yorkshire
HD8 OLA (Tel +44 (0)871 664 0300) Capita also provide a
range of online shareholder information services at

www capitaregistrars com where shareholders can check
their holdings and find practical help on transferrning shares
and updating personal details

Share dealing service

An mternet and telephone share dealing service operated by
Capita Registrars 1s available for shareholders to buy or sell
SCi shares on the London Stock Exchange at

www capitadeal com (Tel +44 {0)870 458 4577)

Share price informatlon

The market price of SCi1 shares 1s avaltable at the Company's
website at www scl co uk Within the UK the pnce 15 also
avalfable on Ceefax and Teletext SCi's stock exchange code
i1s SEG

Unsoliclted mail

The Cempany 1s obliged by law to make 11s share register
avatlable upon request to the public and to other
organisations which may use 1t as a mailling list resulting in
shareholders receiving unsolicited maill Shareholders
wishing to imit the receipt of such mail should wnite to the
Mailing Preference Service, Freepost 29, LON 20 771,
London W1E QZT or telephone +44 {01845 703 4589 for an
application form

Shareholders who hold only a small number of shares where
dealing costs make it uneconomic to sell them, may wish to
consider donating them to chanty through ShareGift, a
registered chanty administered by The Orr Mackintosh
Foundation Further infermation s availlable at

www sharegift org or by telephone +44 ()20 7828 1151

Annual General Meeting

The Company s Annual General Meeting will be held at the
offices of KBC Peel Hunt, 111 Old Broad Street, London
EC2ZN 1PH on Wednesday 20 February 2008 at 12 noon A
cireular 1o shareholders, which includes the notice convening
the meetng, accompanies this document

Corporate calendar 2008
20 February 2008 Annual General Meeting

February 2008 Announcement of half year results to
31 December 2007
May 2008 Intenm management statement

September 2008 Announcement of full year results to
30 June 2008

November 2008 Interim management statement
Investor relations

General enquines may be addressed to the Company
Secretary, Anthony Price at anthonypr@®eidos co uk

or by post to Anthony Price, SCi Entertainment Group pic,
Wimbledon Bndge House, 1 Hartfield Road, London SW18 3RU

or hy telephone on +44 (0)20 8636 3000
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Five year record

IFRS iFRS IFRS UK GAAP UK GAAP
12 months to 12 months 9 months 1o 12 months 1o 12 months to
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 September 30 September
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
£m £m £m £m £m
Summary of results
Revenue 144 0 1791 180 310 285
Gross profit 570 103 8 50 202 17 2
Operating (loss} profit (31 4) 78 (14 Q) 45 36
EBITDA before exceptional items and
share based compensation 150 288 (5 4} 60 43
(Loss) profit before tax (30 0) 81 {13 4} 45 36
Net assets employed
Non current assets 194.4 162 2 142 9 56 64
Net current assets 276 400 290 17 6 103
Total assets less current liabiities 2220 2022 1719 232 167
Non current liabilities {19 4) (15 4) {19 6) - (0 6)
Net assets 2026 186 8 152 3 232 161
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
{Loss) earnings per share {35 3) 185 {37 5) 17 89 15 36

perods for the transition to IFRS

o

ESC

BATMAN and all related characters and elements are trademarks of and @ DC Comics

THE WACKY RACES and all related characters and elements are trademarks of and ©® Hanna Barbera
LOONEY TUNES and all related characters and elements are trademarks of and @ Warner Bros

TOM AND JERRY and all related characters and elements are trademarks of and ® Turner Entertainment Co
WBIE LOGO, WB SHIELD ™ & @ Warner Bros Entertainment Inc

Mixed Sources N,

Product group from well-managed XX%
foretts, controlled tources and

recycled wood or Lber

www.fscorg Certng SGS COC 2958

© 1994 Forest Stewardihip Counal

Printed on Revive Special Silk 30% de inked postconsumer waste with the remainder being virgin wood fibre
Bleaching Pulp 15 a mix using a Totally Chlorine Free (TCF) and an Elemental Chlonine Free (ECF) process

This product 1s CarbonNeutral®

Produced at a mill that 1s certified to the 1S014001 envircnmental management standard

FSC Mixed Sources — preduct group from recycled wood or fibre, well managed forests and other controlled sources

Cover laminated in CelloGreen® Eco-print Laminate
CelloGreen® Eco-pnnt Laminate 1s sustainable, compostable and ¢an be recycled

Designed and produced by BenJamin Rowntree Deslgn Tel 020 7357 0700 www benrown co uk  Printed by Burlington

The amounts stated for 2004 and earlier periods are stated in the basis of UK GAAP as 1t 1s not practical to restate these
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ENTEATAINMENT GROUF PLE

SCi Entertainment Group Plc
Wimbledon Bndge House

1 Hartfield Road

Wimbledon

London

SW1g 3RU

Tel +44 (0)20 8636 3000
Fax +44 (0)20 8636 3001
Web  www sc1 co uk
Email mfo@sci co uk




